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PART I: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1.
Sun Hydraulics Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

June 28, 2003 December 28, 2002
(unaudited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,000 $ 3,958
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $209 and $194 8,182 5,690
Inventories 7,123 6,846
Other current assets 713 810
Total current assets 20,018 17,304
Property, plant and equipment, net 42,334 43,987
Other assets 1,266 994
Total assets $ 63,618 $ 62,285
Liabilities, Redeemable Common Stock and Shareholder’s Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,290 $ 1,706
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,764 1,081
Long-term debt due within one year 1,470 1,421
Dividends payable 258 258
Taxes payable 482 10
Total current liabilities 6,264 4,476
Long-term debt due after one year 7,652 8,190
Deferred income taxes 4,088 4,092
Other noncurrent liabilities 353 378
Total liabilities 18,357 17,136
Redeemable Common Stock 2,250 2,250
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, 2,000,000 shares authorized, par value $0.001, no shares
outstanding - _
Common stock, 20,000,000 shares authorized, par value $0.001, 6,451,278 shares
outstanding 6 6
Capital in excess of par value 22,728 22,690
Unearned compensation related to outstanding restricted stock (105) (170)
Retained earnings 20,304 19,750
Accumulated other comprehensive income 78 623
Total shareholders’ equity 43,011 42,899
Total liabilities, redeemable common stock, and shareholders’ equity $ 63,618 $ 62,285

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sun Hydraulics Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling, engineering and administrative expenses

Operating income

Interest expense

Foreign currency transaction (gain)/loss
Miscellaneous (income)/expense, net

Income before income taxes
Income tax provision

Net income

Basic net income per common share
Weighted average basic shares outstanding
Diluted net income per common share
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Three months ended

June 28,2003

June 29, 2002

(unaudited)
$ 18,912
13,383

5,529
4,267

1,262
138

(127)

(29)

1,280
464

$ 816

$ 013
6,451
$ 012
6,598

(unaudited)
$ 17,413
12,887

4,526
3,142

1,384
136
13

47

1,188
414

$ 774
$ 0.2
6,429
$ 0.2
6,573
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Sun Hydraulics Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling, engineering and administrative expenses

Operating income

Interest expense

Foreign currency transaction
Miscellaneous (income)/expense, net

Income before income taxes
Income tax provision

Net income

Basic net income per common share
Weighted average basic shares outstanding
Diluted net income per common share
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Six months ended

June 28,2003

June 29, 2002

(unaudited)
$ 35,337
25,730

9,607
7,887

1,720
279
(189)

(22)

1,652
582

$ 1,070
$ 017
6,450
$ 0.16
6,596

(unaudited)
$ 33,026
24,807

8,219
6,451

1,768
302
(10)

87

1,389
487

$ 902
$ 0.14
6,429
$ 014
6,570
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Sun Hydraulics Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (unaudited)

(in thousands)

Balance, December 28, 2002

Shares issued

Dividends declared

Comprehensive income:
Net income

Foreign currency translation

adjustments
Comprehensive loss

Balance, June 28, 2003

Unearned
Comprehensive Accumulated
Capital in related to Retained other
Preferred Common excess of restricted earnings comprehensive
Shares Stock stock par value stock (loss) income/(loss) Total

6,446 $ — $6 $22,690 $ (170) $19,750 $ 623 $42,899

5 38 65 103
(516) (516)

1,070 1,070
(545) (545)

525

6,451 $ — $6 $22,728 $ (105) $20,304 $ 78 $43,011

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sun Hydraulics Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Six months ended

June 28,2003 June 29, 2002
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Cash flows from operating activities: $ 1,070 $ 902
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 2,646 2,651
Loss on disposal of assets 367 148
Provision for deferred income taxes @ 1
Allowance for doubtful accounts 15 27
Amortization of compensation expense 65 115
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (2,507) (1,935)
Inventories 277) 27
Taxes receivable — 668
Other current assets 97 188
Other assets (272) (49)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 584 623
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 683 260
Taxes payable 472 477
Other liabilities (25) (24)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,914 4,025
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (1,370) (3,388)
Proceeds from dispositions of equipment 10 53
Net cash used in investing activities (1,360) (3,335)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of debt (489) (448)
Proceeds from stock issuance 38 73
Dividends to shareholders (516) (514)
(967) (889)
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (545) 61
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 42 (138)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 3,958 3,611
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 4,000 3,473
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid/(received):
Interest $ 279 § 302
Income taxes $ 114 $ (659)

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SUN HYDRAULICS CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED, UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF BUSINESS

Sun Hydraulics Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries design, manufacture, and sell screw-in cartridge valves and manifolds used
in hydraulic systems. The Company has facilities in the United States, the United Kingdom, Germany, Korea, and China. Sun Hydraulics
Corporation (“Sun Hydraulics”), with its main offices located in Sarasota, Florida, designs, manufactures, and sells primarily through
distributors. Sun Hydraulik Holdings Limited (“Sun Holdings”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hydraulics, was formed to provide a
holding company for the European market operations; its wholly-owned subsidiaries are Sun Hydraulics Limited (a British corporation,
“Sun Ltd.”) and Sun Hydraulik GmbH (a German corporation, “Sun GmbH”). Sun Ltd. operates a manufacturing and distribution facility
located in Coventry, England, and Sun GmbH operates a manufacturing and distribution facility located in Erkelenz, Germany. Sun
Hydraulics Korea Corporation (“Sun Korea”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hydraulics, located in Inchon, South Korea, operates a
manufacturing and distribution facility. Sun Hydraulics SARL (“Sun France”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hydraulics, located in
Bordeaux, France, is a sales and technical support office. Sun Hydraulics Systems (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Sun China”), a 50/50 joint
venture between Sun Hydraulics and Links Lin, the owner of Sun Hydraulics’ Taiwanese distributor, is located in Shanghai, China, and
operates a manufacturing and distribution facility.

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission for reporting on Form 10-Q. Accordingly, certain information and footnotes required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial statements are not included herein. The financial
statements are prepared on a consistent basis (including normal recurring adjustments) and should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28,
2002, filed by Sun Hydraulics Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 28, 2003. In Management’s opinion, all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the Company’s financial statements are
reflected in the interim periods presented. Operating results for the three and six month periods ended June 28, 2003, are not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for the period ended December 27, 2003.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has adopted the disclosure only provisions of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 148, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an amendment to FAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, has
elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related
interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. Under APB 25, because the exercise price of employee stock options equals
the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recorded. If the company had elected to
recognize compensation expense for stock options based on the fair value at grant date, consistent with the method prescribed by FAS 123,
net income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts below. The pro forma amounts were determined
using the Black-Scholes valuation model with weighted average assumptions as set forth below.
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For the three months ended

June 28, 2003 June 29, 2002

Net income as Reported $ 816 $ 774
Stock Compensation Expense calculated under FAS 123 14 14
Pro Forma Net Income 802 760
Basic earnings per common share:

As reported $ 0.13 $ 0.12

Pro forma 0.12 0.12
Diluted earnings per common share:

As reported $ 0.12 $ 0.12

Pro forma 0.12 0.12
Assumptions

Risk-free interest rate 3.58% 4.82%

Expected lives (in years) 6.5 6.5

Expected volatility 18.00% 18.00%

Dividend yield 2.20% 1.99%

3. INVENTORY
June 28,2003 December 28, 2002
Raw materials $ 2,701 $ 2,239
Work in process 2,490 2,611
Finished goods 1,932 1,996
Total $ 7,123 $ 6,846
4. GOODWILL

On June 28, 2003, the Company had $715 of goodwill, net of cumulative amortization of $157, related to its acquisition of Sun Korea.
Goodwill is held in other assets on the balance sheet. Valuation models reflecting the expected future cash flow projections were used to
value Sun Korea at December 28, 2002. The analysis indicated that there was no impairment on the carrying value of the goodwill. As of
June 28, 2003, the fair value of the goodwill continued to exceed its carrying value.

9
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT

June 28, 2003 December 28, 2002

$4,412 five-year note, collateralized by U.S. equipment, fixed interest rate 5.3%, due

December 23, 2006. $ 4,256 $ 2,980
$3,872 10-year mortgage note with 20-year amortization schedule on the U.S. Manatee

County facility, fixed interest rate of 6.5%, due December 1, 2011. 2,516 4,315
$2,400 12-year mortgage note on the German facility, fixed interest rate of 6.05%, due

September 30, 2008. 1,116 1,094
10-year notes, fixed interest rates ranging from 3.5 - 5.1%, collateralized by equipment

in Germany, due between 2009 and 2011. 1,136 1,115
Other 98 107

9,122 9,611

Less amount due within one year (1,470) (1,421)

Total $ 7,652 $ 8,190

The Company has two revolving lines of credit agreements totaling $8,819 with various banks. Interest rates on these credit facilities are
variable based on the prime rate in the U.S. and the equivalent rate in the U.K. The lines of credit in the U.S. and the U.K. expire in 2004
and 2006, respectively. Neither of these arrangements contains pre-payment penalties and there were no outstanding balances at June 28,
2003, or December 28, 2002.

Certain of these debt instruments are subject to debt covenants including 1) consolidated net working capital (as defined) of not less than
$2,000 and a current ratio (as defined) not less than 1.2:1.0 at all times during the term of the loan, 2) tangible net worth (as defined) for the
fiscal year 2001 at a minimum of $35,000, with tangible net worth (as defined) increases for subsequent fiscal years of at least 50% of net
income for the immediately preceding fiscal year, 3) consolidated debt service coverage ratio (as defined) throughout the term of the loan
at a minimum of 1.25:1.0 on a calendar year basis, and 4) liabilities to net worth ratio (as defined) at a maximum of 1.5:1.0. As of June 28,
2003, the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.

On July 23, 2003, the Company completed a recapitalization which refinanced existing debt in the U.S. and further leveraged assets. The
new financing consists of a Term Loan of $11 million and a secured revolving Line of Credit of $12 million. The Term Loan is secured by
the Company’s U.S. land and buildings, with monthly principal and interest payments based upon a 20-year amortization schedule, and
with all remaining principal and interest due in June 2008. The Line of Credit is secured by all of the Company’s U.S. and foreign assets,
excluding land and buildings, requires monthly payments of interest only, and is payable in full in June 2006. Both the Term Loan and the
Line of Credit have a floating interest rate for the first year of 1) 1.9% over LIBOR, or 2) Prime Rate, at the Company’s discretion;
thereafter, the rates will vary based upon the Company’s leverage ratio.

See the Credit and Security Agreement between the Company and SouthTrust Bank which is filed with this Form 10-Q as Exhibit 4.17.
6. REDEEMABLE COMMON STOCK

On June 22, 2002, the Company entered into a standby Stock Repurchase Agreement with the Koski Family Limited Partnership, which
owns approximately 36% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock. Under the Agreement, the Company agreed to
purchase, if requested to do so, up to $2,250 worth of Sun common stock from the Koski Partnership on a one time basis, until June 22,

2004. The repurchase
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would be at a per share price of either (i) $7.00 per share, or (ii) 15% less than the average closing price per share of the common stock for
the 15 full trading days immediately preceding the closing date, whichever is lower.

At June 28, 2003, the average closing price of Sun’s common stock for the previous 15 full trading days was $7.78 per share. A 15%
discount from this price would result in a repurchase price per share of $6.61. At this price, Sun would repurchase approximately 340,000
shares from the Koski Partnership for $2,250 in cash. On the Company’s balance sheet, $2,250 has been transferred from Capital in Excess
of Par into Redeemable Common Stock. Upon execution of the put option by the Koski Partnership, the Company would record treasury

stock in the amount of $2,250.

7. SEGMENT REPORTING

The individual subsidiaries comprising the Company operate predominantly in a single industry as manufacturers and distributors of
hydraulic components. The Company is multinational with operations in the United States, and subsidiaries in the United Kingdom,
Germany, France, and Korea. In computing operating profit for the foreign subsidiaries, no allocations of general corporate expenses have
been made. Management bases its financial decisions by the geographical location of its operations.

Identifiable assets of the foreign subsidiaries are those assets related to the operation of those companies. United States assets consist of all

other operating assets of the Company.

Segment information is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 28, 2003
Sales to unaffiliated customers
Intercompany sales

Operating income/(loss)
Depreciation

Capital expenditures

Three Months Ended June 29, 2002
Sales to unaffiliated customers
Intercompany sales

Operating income

Depreciation

Capital expenditures

Six Months Ended June 28, 2003
Sales to unaffiliated customers
Intercompany sales

Operating income/(loss)
Depreciation

Capital expenditures

Six Months Ended June 29, 2002
Sales to unaffiliated customers
Intercompany sales

Operating income

Depreciation

Capital expenditures

United United
States Korea Germany Kingdom Elimination Consolidated
$11,151 $2,013 $2,368 $3,380 $ — $ 18912
3,920 — 17 367 (4,304) —
1,166 226 238 (337) (31) 1,262
927 29 100 274 — 1,330
605 4 63 160 — 832
$11,468 $1,644 $1,577 $2,723 $ — $ 17,413
2,937 — 13 431 (3,381) —
958 124 53 285 (35) 1,384
1,048 29 74 179 — 1,330
591 23 31 1,291 — 1,936
$21,265 $3,545 $4,634 $5,893 $  — $ 35337
6,876 — 24 708 (7,608) —
1,299 353 494 (465) 39 1,720
1,852 57 191 546 — 2,646
931 32 92 315 — 1,370
$21,203 $3,207 $3,303 $5,312 $ — $ 33,026
5,987 — 19 920 (6,926) —
972 203 157 532 (95) 1,768
2,093 59 145 354 — 2,651
1,069 48 43 2,228 — 3,388
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Operating income is total sales and other operating income less operating expenses. In computing segment operating income/(loss), interest
expense and net miscellaneous income (expense) have not been deducted (added).

Included in U.S. sales to unaffiliated customers were export sales, principally to Canada and Asia, of $2,075 and $1,963 during the three
months ended June 28, 2003, and June 29, 2002, respectively.

8. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

During November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. (FIN) 45, Guarantor’s Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of others (an interpretation of FAS No. 5, 57,
and 107 and rescission of FAS Interpretation No. 34), which modifies the accounting and enhances the disclosure of certain types of
guarantees. FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of certain guarantees, the guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value of the
obligation it assumes under the guarantee. FIN 45’s provisions for the initial recognition and measurement are to be applied to guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of annual periods that end
after December 15, 2002. Sun Hydraulics Corporation guarantees a loan of its German subsidiary totaling approximately $250. The debt is
recorded in the consolidation, see note 6.

During January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of
ARB No. 51, which imposes a new approach in determining if a reporting entity should consolidate legal entities defined as variable
interest entities (VIE). A legal entity is considered a VIE if it does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its own activities without
relying on financial support from other parties. Additional criteria must be applied to determine if this condition is met or if the equity
holders, as a group, lack any one of the three stipulated characteristics of a controlling financial interest. If the legal entity is a VIE, then the
reporting entity determined to be the primary beneficiary must consolidate it. Even if a reporting entity is not obligated to consolidate a
VIE, then certain disclosures must be made about the VIE if the reporting entity has a significant variable interest. Certain transition
disclosures are required for all financial statements issued after January 31, 2003. The on-going disclosure and consolidation requirements
are effective for all interim financial periods beginning after June 15, 2003.

The Company uses the equity method of accounting to account for investments in its joint venture in China in which it does not have a
majority ownership or exercise control. The Company does not believe that its investment in the China Joint Venture is a VIE and within
the scope of FIN 46.

During May 2003, the FASB issued FAS 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity, which requires that an issuer classify certain financial instruments as a liability or an asset. Previously, many financial instruments
with characteristics of both liabilities and equity were classified as equity. Financial instruments subject to FAS 150 include financial
instruments with any of the following features:

An unconditional redemption obligation at a specified or determinable date, or upon an event that is certain to occur;

An obligation to repurchase shares, or indexed to such an obligation, and may require physical share or net cash settlement;

An unconditional, or for new issuances conditional, obligation that may be settled by issuing a variable number of equity shares if either
(a) a fixed monetary amount is known at inception, (b) the variability is indexed to something other than the fair value of the issuer’s
equity shares, or (c) the variability moves inversely to changes in the fair value of the issuer’s shares.

The standard requires that all such instruments be classified as a liability, or an asset in certain circumstances, and initially measured at fair
value. Forward contracts that require a fixed physical share settlement and mandatorily redeemable financial instruments must be

subsequently re-measured at fair value on each reporting date.

12




Table of Contents

This standard is effective for all financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and for all other financial instruments,
at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company expects to reclassify its redeemable common stock
to long-term liabilities upon the adoption of the standard.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 30, 2003, the Company declared a special dividend of $2 per share payable on August 18, 2003, to shareholders of record as of
August 11, 2003. On July 23, 2003, the Company completed a recapitalization which refinanced existing debt in the U.S. and further
leveraged assets in order to pay the special dividend. See footnote 5 for a description of the new financing. At current rates, interest expense
for the first year will increase approximately $0.2 million from the current charge of $0.6 million. The recapitalization is projected to
increase the debt to equity ratio from 20% at the end of the second quarter to 60% at the end of the third quarter.

13




Table of Contents

Item 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
OVERVIEW

Sun Hydraulics Corporation is a leading designer and manufacturer of high-performance screw-in hydraulic cartridge valves and manifolds,
which control force, speed and motion as integral components in fluid power systems. The Company sells its products globally, primarily
though independent distributors. Sales outside the United States for the six months ended June 28, 2003, consisted of 53% of total net

sales. Approximately 66% of product sales are used by the mobile market, characterized by applications where the equipment is not fixed
in place, the operating environment is often unpredictable, and duty cycles are generally moderate to low. The remaining 34% of sales are
used by industrial markets, which are characterized by equipment that is fixed in place, typically in a controlled environment, with higher
pressures and duty cycles. The Company sells to both markets with a single product line.

Net sales for the quarter ended June 28, 2003, were $18.9 million, an increase of $1.5 million, or 8.6%, from the quarter ended June 29,
2002, and an increase of $2.5 million, or 15.2%, compared to net sales for the quarter ended March 29, 2003. Net income was $0.8 million
for the quarters ended June 28, 2003, and June 29, 2002, representing 4.3% and 4.4% of net sales, respectively. Net income this period
included a write off of development costs for an application software project in the United Kingdom. Excluding this write off, net income
would have been $1.1 million, or 5.6% of net sales. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the quarter ended June 28, 2003, were $0.13
and $0.12, respectively, compared to $0.12 for the quarter ended June 29, 2002.

The 8.6% increase in net sales this quarter compared to the same quarter last year consisted of a 6.2% decrease in domestic sales and a
25.2% increase in foreign sales. The North American manufacturing sector of the economy still is not seeing signs of a recovery. The
Company’s international net sales increased approximately 12% when adjusted for the effect of exchange rates. Management believes the
Company is gaining market share in some segments, particularly in central Europe where sales increased in the face of difficult economic
times.

Prime or variable manufacturing costs in the United States decreased as a percent of sales in the current quarter compared to the same
quarter last year. Management believes that this is an indication of the Company’s productivity improvements and ability to significantly
improve operating margins as the economy recovers and the top line grows.

Special Dividend

On July 23, 2003, the Company completed a recapitalization which refinanced existing debt and further leveraged assets in order to pay a
special dividend of $2 per share on August 18, 2003, for holders of record as of August 11, 2003. The new financing consists of a term loan
of approximately $11 million and a secured line of credit of $12 million. The minimum principal payments required under the new debt
structure will be $0.4 million as compared $1.1 million before capitalization. The interest rates are based on LIBOR and interest expense
for the first year at current rates is projected to increase approximately $200,000 to $800,000. The recapitalization is projected to increase
the debt to equity ratio from 20% at the end of the second quarter to 60% at the end of the third quarter. This financing is expected to give
the Company flexibility to maintain investments for the long term and to continue paying a quarterly dividend.

Software Write Off

Approximately $0.4 million of capitalized software costs related to upgrading the integrated manufacturing system in the United Kingdom
operation was written off in the second quarter. The installation of this highly customized software was aborted due to major flaws in the
system. The Company has decided that it is not feasible to continue this project and intends to seek remedy from the software developer.

Outlook
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Sales for the third quarter are projected to be $17.0 million, with net income of $0.06 per share, compared to third quarter 2002 sales and
net income of $16.0 million and $0.08 per share. The anticipated decrease in net income, despite the higher sales volume and increased
productivity, is attributed to increased marketing and administrative costs, including $0.3 million related to the Company’s re-capitalization
and special dividend distribution.

COMPARISON OF THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 28, 2003 AND JUNE 29, 2002
Net Sales

Net sales for the quarter ended June 28, 2003, were $18.9 million, an increase of $1.5 million, or 8.6%, from $17.4 million for the quarter
ended June 29, 2002. Domestic net sales decreased 6.2%, or $0.6 million, in the second quarter of 2003 compared to 2002. International net
sales increased 25.2%, or $2.1 million, across all business segments with increases in Germany, the United Kingdom, and Korea of 50.2%,
24.1%, and 22.4%, respectively. International sales increased approximately 12% when adjusted for the effect of exchange rates.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased 22.2%, or $1.0 million, to $5.5 million in the quarter ended June 28, 2003, compared to $4.5 million for the quarter
ended June 29, 2002. Gross profit as a percentage of net sales increased to 29.2% in the second quarter of 2003, compared to 26.0% in the
second quarter of 2002. In addition to higher sales volume, the increase in gross profit as a percentage of net sales was due to productivity
improvements in the U.S. operation and lower material costs in the German and Korean operations due to the strength of local currencies
against the U.S. dollar. Gross profit as a percent of sales in the U.K. operation decreased because of lower productivity and incremental
costs related to the system conversion costs.

Selling, Engineering, and Administrative Expenses

Selling, engineering and administrative expenses increased 35.8%, or $1.1 million, to $4.3 million for the quarter ended June 28, 2003,
compared to the quarter ended June 29, 2002. The increase was primarily due to a $0.4 million capitalized software write off in the United
Kingdom, system conversion costs in the United Kingdom, professional fees, website development costs and trade show expenses. Selling,
engineering and administrative expenses increased $0.3 million, or 7.9%, from the quarter ended March 29, 2003, excluding the software
write off.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the quarter ended June 28, 2003, was $0.1 million, equal to the same period last year.

Foreign Currency Transaction (Gain)/Loss

Foreign currency transaction gain of $0.1 million in the quarter ended June 28, 2003, was due primarily to the gain of the Euro against the
U. S. Dollar in the German operation and the gain of the Won against the U. S. Dollar in Korean operation.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the quarter ended June 28, 2003, was 36.2% of pretax income compared to 34.8% for the quarter
ended June 29, 2002. The change was due to the relative mix of income and different tax rates in effect among the countries in which the
Company sells its products.
COMPARISON OF SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 28, 2003 AND JUNE 29, 2002
Net Sales
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Net sales increased $2.3 million, or 7.0%, to $35.3 million for the six months ended June 28, 2003, compared to the six months ended

June 29, 2002. Domestic net sales decreased $0.4 million, or 2.2%, due to the continued recession in the manufacturing sector of the United
States economy. International net sales increased across all business segments with increases of 40.3%, 10.9%, and 10.5%, in Germany, the
United Kingdom, and Korea, respectively. Management believes the Company is gaining market share in some segments, particularly in
central Europe where sales increased in the face of difficult economic times.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $1.4 million, or 16.9%, to $9.6 million for the six months ended June 28, 2003, compared to $8.2 million for the six
months ended June 29, 2002. Gross profit as a percentage of net sales increased to 27.2% for the six months ended June 28, 2003,
compared to 24.9% for the six months ended June 29, 2002. The major reason for the increase in gross profit as a percentage of net sales

were productivity improvements in the U.S. and lower material costs in the international operations due to the strength of local currencies
against the U.S. dollar for material purchases made in U.S. dollars.

Selling, Engineering, and Administrative Expenses

Selling, engineering and administrative expenses increased 22.2%, or $1.4 million, to $7.9 million for the six months ended June 28, 2003,
compared to $6.5 million in the six months ended June 29, 2002. The increase was primarily due to a $0.4 million capitalized software
write off in the United Kingdom, system conversion costs in the United Kingdom, professional fees, website development costs, and trade
show expenses.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the six month ended June 28, 2003, was $0.3 million, equal to the same period last year.

Foreign Currency Transaction (Gain)/Loss

Foreign currency transaction gain of $0.2 million for the six months ended June 28, 2003, was due primarily to the gain of the Euro against
the U. S. Dollar in the German operation coupled with a smaller gain of the Won against the U. S. Dollar in the Korean operation.

Miscellaneous (Income)/Expense

Miscellaneous expense was $0.1 million for the six months ended June 29, 2002, consisting primarily of losses on disposal of assets in the
United States and lower interest income in the United Kingdom.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the six months ended June 28, 2003, was 35.2% of pretax income, compared to 35.1% of pretax income
for the six months ended June 29, 2002. The change was due to the relative mix of income and different tax rates in effect among the
countries in which the Company sells its products.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Historically, the Company’s primary source of capital has been cash generated from operations, although fluctuations in working capital
requirements have been met through borrowings under revolving lines of credit. The Company’s principal uses of cash have been to pay
operating expenses, make capital expenditures, pay dividends to shareholders, and service debt.

Cash from operations for the six months ended June 28, 2003, was $2.8 million. This compares with $3.9 million for the six months ended
June 29, 2002. The $1.1 million decrease in cash from operations was due to an increase in working capital related to higher sales. Days
sales outstanding (DSO) were 39 and 38 at
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June 28, 2003, and June 29, 2002, respectively. Inventory turns were 7.7 and 7.9 at June 28, 2003, and June 29, 2002, respectively.

Capital expenditures, consisting primarily of purchases of machinery and equipment, were $1.4 million for the six months ended June 28,
2003, compared to $3.4 million for the quarter ended June 29, 2002. Prior year expenses included the building addition in the U.K. Capital
expenditures for the year are expected to be $4.0 million.

The Company declared a quarterly dividend of $0.04 per share to shareholders of record on June 30, 2003, which was paid on July 15,
2003.

On July 30, 2003, the Company also declared a special dividend of $2 per share payable on August 18, 2003, to shareholders of record as
of August 11, 2003. On July 23, 2003, the Company completed a recapitalization which refinanced existing debt in the U.S. and further
leveraged assets in order to pay the special dividend. The new financing consists of a Term Loan of $11 million and a secured revolving
Line of Credit of $12 million. The Term Loan is secured by the Company’s U.S. land and buildings, with monthly principal and interest
payments based upon a 20-year amortization schedule, and with all remaining principal and interest due in June 2008. The Line of Credit is
secured by all of the Company’s U.S. and foreign assets, including land and buildings, requires monthly payments of interest only, and will
be payable in full in June 2006. The minimum principal payments required under the new debt structure will be less than those required
under the existing debt at June 28, 2003. Both the Term Loan and the Line of Credit have a floating interest rate for the first year of 1)
1.9% over LIBOR or 2) Prime Rate, at the Company’s discretion; thereafter, the rates will vary based upon the Company’s leverage ratio.
At current rates, interest expense for the first year will increase approximately $0.2 million from the current charge of $0.6 million. The
recapitalization is projected to increase the debt to equity ratio from 20% at the end of the second quarter to 60% at the end of the third
quarter.

The Term Loan and the Line of Credit have the following debt covenants: 1) minimum Fixed Charges Coverage Ratio (as defined) of
2.0:1:0, 2) Debt (as defined) to Tangible Net Worth (as defined) ratio of not more than 1.5:1.0, 3) Current Ratio (as defined) of 1.5:1.0, 4)
Funded Debt (as defined) to EBITDA (as defined) ratio of less than 3.25:1.0, and 5) maintain primary domestic depository accounts with
the Bank.

The Company believes that cash generated from operations and its borrowing availability under the Line of Credit will be sufficient to
satisfy the Company’s operating expenses, capital expenditures, and payment of normal quarterly dividends for the foreseeable future.

SEASONALITY AND INFLATION

The Company generally has experienced reduced activity during the fourth quarter of the year, largely as a result of fewer working days
due to holiday shutdowns. The Company does not believe that inflation had a material effect on its operations for the periods ended

June 28, 2003, and June 29, 2002. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company’s business will not be affected by inflation in the
future.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain oral statements made by management from time to time and certain statements contained herein that are not historical facts are
“forward-looking statements”” within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and, because such statements
involve risks and uncertainties, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements, including those in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
are statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations, estimates or projections of the Company, its Directors or its Officers
about the Company and the industry in which it operates, and assumptions made by management, and include among other items, (i) the
Company'’s strategies regarding growth, including its intention to develop new products; (ii) the Company'’s financing plans; (iii) trends
affecting the Company’s financial condition or results of operations, (iv) the Company’s ability to continue to control costs and to meet its
liquidity and other financing needs; (v) the declaration and payment of dividends; and (vi) the Company’s ability to respond to changes in
customer demand domestically and internationally, including as a result of
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standardization. Although the Company believes that its expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, it can give no assurance that
the anticipated results will occur.

Important factors that could cause the actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include, among other
items, (i) the economic cyclicality of the capital goods industry in general and the hydraulic valve and manifold industry in particular,
which directly affect customer orders, lead times and sales volume, (ii) conditions in the capital markets, including the interest rate
environment and the availability of capital; (iii) changes in the competitive marketplace that could affect the Company’s revenue and/or
cost bases, such as increased competition, lack of qualified engineering, marketing, management or other personnel, and increased labor
and raw materials costs; (iv) changes in technology or customer requirements, such as standardization of the cavity into which screw-in
cartridge valves must fit, which could render the Company’s products or technologies noncompetitive or obsolete; (v) new product
introductions, product sales mix and the geographic mix of sales nationally and internationally; and (vi) changes relating to the
Company'’s international sales, including changes in regulatory requirements or tariffs, trade or currency restrictions, fluctuations in
exchange rates, and tax and collection issues. Further information relating to factors that could cause actual results to differ from those
anticipated is included but not limited to information under the headings “Business” (including under the subheading “Business Risk
Factors”) in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 28, 2002, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations” in this Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 28, 2003. The Company disclaims any intention or
obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on borrowed funds, which could affect its results of operations and
financial condition. At June 28, 2003, the Company had approximately $0.1 million in variable-rate debt outstanding and, as such, the
market risk is immaterial. The Company manages this risk by selecting debt financing at its lenders’ prime rate less 1%, or the Libor rate
plus 2.0%, whichever is more advantageous. Under the terms of the new debt, as described in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section
of MD&A, interest rates on both the Term Loan and the revolving Line of Credit have variable rates for the first year of 1.9% over LIBOR
or Prime Rate plus 0%, at the Company’s discretion; thereafter, the rates will remain variable based upon the Company’s leverage ratio.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Within 90 days prior to the date of filing this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with
the participation of our management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 28, 2003, and the evaluation date. There have been no
significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date our
evaluation.
PART I
OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

None.
Item 2. Changes in Securities.

None.
Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
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The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company was held on June 7, 2003. At the meeting, the following actions were taken by
the shareholders:

Hirokatsu Sakamoto was elected as a Director to serve until the Annual Meeting in 2005; and Allen J. Carlson, John S. Kahler and
Robert E. Koski were reelected as Directors until the Annual Meeting in the year 2006; until their respective successors are elected and
qualified or until their earlier resignation, removal from office or death. The votes cast for and against each were as follows:

Voted For Withheld
Allen J. Carlson 6,036,825 7,105
John S. Kahler 6,037,830 6,100
Robert E. Koski 6,036,094 7,836
Hirokatsu Sakamoto 6,038,175 5,755

The appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, as the Company’s independent certified public accountants for the year 2003 was
ratified and approved. The voting on the proposal was as follows:

FOR 5,986,353
AGAINST 56,777
ABSTAIN 800

Item 5. Other Information.
None.
Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K.
(a)  Exhibits:

Exhibit Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 in the Pre-
Effective Amendment No. 4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on December 19, 1996
(File No. 333-14183) and incorporated herein by reference).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 in the Company’s Quarterly
report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 2, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference).

4.1 Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated June 22, 2002, between Sun Hydraulics Corporation and the Koski Family
Limited Partnership (previously filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated July 2, 2002 and
incorporated herein by reference).

10.1 Form of Distributor Agreement (Domestic) (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 in the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 15, 1996 (File No. 333-14183) and incorporated herein by reference).

10.2 Form of Distributor Agreement (International) (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 in the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 15, 1996 (File No. 333-14183) and incorporated herein by reference).

10.3+ 1996 Sun Hydraulics Corporation Stock Option Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 in the Pre-Effective
Amendment No. 4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on December 19, 1996 (File No.
333-14183) and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.4+ Amendment No. 1 to 1996 Stock Option Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.5 Mortgage, dated April 11, 1996, between Sun Hydraulik GmbH and Dresdner Bank (previously filed as
Exhibit 4.19 in the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 15, 1996 (File No. 333-
14183) and incorporated herein by reference).

10.6+ Form of Indemnification Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 in the Pre-Effective Amendment No. 4
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on December 19, 1996 (File No. 333-14183) and
incorporated herein by reference).

10.7+ Sun Hydraulics Corporation Employee Stock Award Program (previously filed as Exhibit 4 to the Company’s
registration statement on Form S-8 filed on July 20, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.8+ 2001 Sun Hydraulics Corporation Restricted Stock Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 4 to the Company’s
registration statement on Form S-8 filed on June 12, 2001 (file No. 333-62816), and incorporated herein by
reference).

10.9+ Sun Hydraulics Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 4 to the Company’s
registration statement on Form S-8 filed on July 27, 2001 (file No. 333-66008), and incorporated herein by
reference).

10.10 Credit and Security Agreement dated July 23, 2003, between the Company, Sun Hydraulik Holdings Limited
and Sun Hydraulics Limited as Borrower, and SouthTrust Bank as Lender.

31.1  CEO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2  CFO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 CEO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350.
32.2  CFO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

+ Executive management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(b)  Reports on Form 8-K
1. Report on Form 8-K (dated May 6, 2003) filed May 6, 2003, announcing the Company’s 1st quarter financial results.

2. Report on Form 8-K (dated June 10, 2003) filed June 16, 2003, announcing the declaration of the Company’s 2nd quarter 2003
dividend.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Sarasota, State of Florida on August 12, 2003.

SUN HYDRAULICS CORPORATION

By: /s/Richard J. Dobbyn

Richard J. Dobbyn
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.10
CREDIT AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

This Credit and Security Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of this 23rd day of July, 2003, is by and between SUN HYDRAULICS
CORPORATION, a Florida corporation, SUN HYDRAULIK HOLDINGS LIMITED, a company incorporated in England and Wales,
and SUN HYDRAULICS LIMITED, a company incorporated in England and Wales, (collectively, the “Borrower”’) and SOUTHTRUST
BANK, an Alabama Banking corporation (the “Bank”). The parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

The Borrower and the Bank agree as follows:
ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS AND ACCOUNTING TERMS

SECTION 1.01. Defined Terms. As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings (terms defined in the
singular to have the same meaning when used in the plural and vice versa):

“Account” or “Accounts” means a right to payment of a monetary obligation, whether or not earned by performance, (i) for property
that has been or is to be sold, leased, licensed, assigned, or otherwise disposed of, (ii) for services rendered or to be rendered, (iii) for a
policy of insurance issued or to be issued, (iv) for a secondary obligation incurred or to be incurred, (v) for energy provided or to be
provided, (vi) for the use or hire of a vessel under a charter or other contract, (vii) arising out of the use of a credit or charge card or
information contained on or for use with the card, or (viii) as winnings in a lottery or other game of chance operated or sponsored by a
State, governmental unit of a State, or person licensed or authorized to operate the game by a State or governmental unit of a State. The
term includes health-care-insurance receivables.

“Advance” or “Advances” means advances made to Borrower by the Bank under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility.

“Affiliate” means, as applied to any Person, any other Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control
with that Person. For purposes of this definition, “control” as applied to any Person means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the
power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of that Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities,
by contract, or otherwise.

“Agreement” means this Credit Agreement, as amended, supplemented, or modified from time to time.
“Applicable Margin” means the percentage added to the Interbank Rate (Reserve Adjusted) to determine the LIBOR Rate at which

interest shall accrue on the Loans and, when the Base Rate applies to the Loans, the percentage added to the Base Rate, determined as
follows:




(1)  Commencing on the Closing Date and continuing to the first anniversary of the Closing Date:

LIBOR Base Rate Facility
Margin Margin Fee
1.90% 0.00% 0.000%

(2)  Commencing on the first anniversary of the Closing Date and continuing through the Term Loan Maturity Date,
the Applicable Margin shall be adjusted in accordance with the following Performance Pricing Matrix:

Leverage Ratio LIBOR Base Rate Facility
Funded Debt/EBIDTA Margin Margin Fee
<1.50:1.0 1.75% 0.00% 0.000%
>=1.50:1.0 & <2.0:1.0 1.90% 0.00% 0.000%
>=2.0:1.0 & <2.50:1.0 2.10% 0.00% 0.000%
>=2.50:1.0 & <2.75:1.0 2.40% 0.50% 0.000%
>=2.75:1.0 & <3.25:1.0 2.75% 1.00% 0.125%

The Applicable Margin shall be based on changes in the Funded Debt to EBIDTA Ratio as set forth above calculated quarterly based upon
a rolling four quarter calculation of EBIDTA, and shall be determined based on the computations set forth in the Compliance Certificate
furnished to the Bank pursuant to Section 6.08(4) and shall be effective commencing on the date following the date such Certificate is
received (or if earlier, the date such Certificate was required to be delivered), and in each case, until the date following the date on which a
new Certificate is delivered or is required to be delivered, whichever shall first occur, provided however, that if the Borrower shall fail to
deliver any such Certificate within the time period required by Section 6.08(4), or if the Bank in the exercise of reasonable business
judgment determines that the calculations contained in such Certificate are inaccurate or incomplete and such inaccuracy or incompleteness
is not cured by Borrower to the Bank’s reasonable satisfaction within 15 days after receipt by Borrower of a written notice of such
inaccuracy or incompleteness from the Bank, then the Applicable Margin shall be at the highest level until an appropriate, accurate and
complete Certificate is delivered to the Bank showing that a different level is applicable.

“Applicable Rate” means the interest rate selected by Borrower to apply to the Term Note or to Advances under the Revolving Line of
Credit Facility and which may be either the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin or the LIBOR Rate.

“Assets” means, at any time, all assets that should, in accordance with GAAP consistently applied, be classified as assets on a balance
sheet of the Borrower.

“Bank Affiliate” means any entity directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under
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common control with the Bank. For purposes of this definition, “control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct
or cause the direction of the management and policies of that entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or
otherwise.

“Base Rate” means the lending rate as announced by the Bank from time to time, as its base rate which may change as often as daily,
provided however, that at no time shall the rate of interest exceed the highest rate allowed by law. In the event that Bank does not, for any
reason, announce a Base Rate or discontinues the use of the term “Base Rate” as a benchmark for interest rate on its loans, the Base Rate
shall be the rate quoted as the “prime rate” as reported in the “Money Rates” section of the Wall Street Journal (or the arithmetic average of
the rates so quoted, if more than one rate is quoted) or, in the event of discontinuance of such publication or such section thereof, the Base
Rate shall mean the monthly average prime rate as reported and published in the Federal Reserve Bulletin published monthly by the Board
of Governors of the Federal Reserve System under the table styled “Prime Rate Charged by Banks on Short Term Business Loans”. In the
event of the discontinuance of both such publications or such section or table thereof, the Base Rate shall mean the prime rate as from time
to time announced or published by Citibank, N.A. at its principal office in New York, New York.

The terms “Base Rate” and “Prime Rate” are intended by the parties to be benchmarks only and are not to be construed as indicating that
such rates are the best or lowest rates offered by the Lender to any of its customers regardless of their creditworthiness.

“Base Rate Advance” means an advance under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility bearing interest at the Base Rate plus the
Applicable Margin.

“Borrower’s Books” means all of the Borrower’s books and records including, without limitation, ledgers; records indicating,
summarizing or evidencing Borrower’s properties or assets (including the Collateral) or liabilities; all information relating to Borrower’s
business operations or financial condition; and all computer programs, disc or tape files, printouts, runs, or other computer prepared
information.

“Borrowing Base” means the sum of (a) 85% of domestic Eligible Accounts, plus (b) 40% of foreign Eligible Accounts (expressly
excluding any Accounts of Sun Hydraulik GmbH and of Sun Hydraulics Korea Corporation), plus (c) 50% of domestic Eligible Inventory
(provided that Advances based on foreign Eligible Accounts shall not exceed $1,250,000 outstanding at any time and Advances based on
domestic Eligible Inventory shall not exceed $3,000,000 outstanding at any time), plus (d) 60% of the net book value of domestic
machinery and Equipment (provided that Advances based on domestic machinery and Equipment shall not exceed $8,000,000 outstanding
at any time and that such advance limit shall reduce by $1,000,000 annually on each anniversary of the Closing Date).

“Borrowing Base Certificate” is defined in Section 2.05.

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or other day on which commercial banks in Tampa, Florida or
Birmingham, Alabama are authorized or required to close under applicable law.
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“Capital Lease” means all leases which have been or should be capitalized on the books of the lessee in accordance with GAAP.

“Chattel Paper” means a record or records that evidence both a monetary obligation and a security interest in specific goods, a security
interest in specific goods and software used in the goods, a security interest in specific goods and license of software used in the goods, a
lease of specific goods, or a lease of specific goods and license of software used in the goods. For the purposes hereof, “monetary
obligation” means a monetary obligation secured by the goods or owed under a lease of the goods and includes a monetary obligation with
respect to software used in the goods. If a transaction is evidenced by records that include an instrument or series of instruments, the group
of records taken together constitutes chattel paper.

“Closing Date” means the date of this Credit Agreement upon which the Loan Documents have been executed by the Borrower and
delivered to the Bank.

“Collateral” means the Stock Collateral, the Real Property Collateral and all of the Borrower’s domestic and foreign assets (excluding
real property located outside the United States, £240,000 in blocked account number 5071475, sort code 30-92-33, titled “Lloyds TSB re
Sun Hydraulics Ltd, BIGs liability”, and assets of Sun Hydraulik GmbH and of Sun Hydraulics Korea Corporation) including, without
limitation, Items of Payment, Accounts, Chattel Paper, Commercial Tort Claims, Commodity Accounts, Commodity Contracts, Deposit
Accounts, Equipment, General Intangibles, Goods, Health Care Insurance Receivables, Instruments, Inventory, Investment Property, Letter
of Credit Rights, Payment Intangibles and all other tangible and intangible Assets of Borrower including, without limitation, Borrower’s
Books relating to Collateral, and the proceeds of Collateral whether cash or non-cash including, without limitation, insurance proceeds.

“Commercial Tort Claims” means a claim or claims arising in tort with respect to which:

(A)  the claimant is an organization; or
(B)  the claimant is an individual and the claim:
(i) arose in the course of the claimant’s business or profession; and

(ii) does not include damages arising out of personal injury to or the death of an individual.

“Commitment” means the Bank’s obligation to make Advances to the Borrower under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility pursuant
to Article II of this Agreement in the amount referred to therein.

“Commodity Account” means an account maintained by a commodity intermediary in which a commodity contract is carried for a
commodity customer.




“Commodity Contract” means a commodity futures contract, an option on a commodity futures contract, a commodity option, or
another contract if the contract or option is:

(A)  traded on or subject to the rules of a board of trade that has been designated as a contract market for such a contract pursuant to
federal commodities laws; or

(B)  traded on a foreign commodity board of trade, exchange, or market, and is carried on the books of a commodity intermediary
for a commodity customer.

“Current Ratio” means current assets divided by current liabilities.

"Debt” means (1) indebtedness or liability for borrowed money or for the deferred purchase price of property or services (including
trade obligations); (2) obligations as lessee under Capital Leases; (3) current liabilities in respect of unfunded vested benefits under any
Plan; (4) obligations under letters of credit issued for the account of any Person; (5) all obligations arising under a Note; (6) all guaranties,
endorsements (other than for collection or deposit in the ordinary course of business), and other contingent obligations to purchase, to
provide funds for payment, to supply funds to invest in any Person, or otherwise to assure a creditor against loss; and (7) obligations
secured by any Lien on property owned by the Borrower, whether or not the obligations have been assumed; but excluding obligations of
Borrower under the Stock Repurchase Agreement.

“Default” means any of the events specified in Section 9.01, whether or not any requirement for the giving of notice, the lapse of time,
or both, or any other condition, has been satisfied.

“Default Rate” means a fixed rate of interest of 18% per annum.

“Deposit Accounts” means, singly or collectively as the context may require, a demand, time, savings, passbook, or similar account
maintained with a bank.

“EBIDTA” means net income before provision for interest depreciation, provision for income taxes and amortization.

“Eligible Accounts” means, Borrower’s domestic and foreign Accounts (excluding Accounts of Sun Hydraulik GmbH and of Sun
Hydraulics Korea Corporation), in which the Bank has a first priority, perfected security interest, that are owing to Borrower by solvent
account debtors less Accounts (i) outstanding for more than 90 days or (ii) in default, contested, subject to an asserted setoff, defense,
counterclaim or claim of any person, other than the Borrower or the Bank, or (iii) billed but for which goods have not been shipped, or
(iv) owed by any Affiliate. Any Account of the Borrower in which the Bank does not have a first priority, perfected security interest shall
not be an Eligible Account.

“Eligible Inventory” means all Borrower’s domestic Inventory excluding work in progress provided, however, that the Bank has a first
priority, perfected security interest therein. Any Inventory of the Borrower in which the Bank does not have a first priority, perfected
security interest shall not be Eligible Inventory.




“Equipment” means goods other than inventory, farm products or consumer goods and includes, without limitation, machinery of all
types, heavy equipment, non-titled vehicles, computers, printers and office equipment.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, and the regulations and
published interpretations thereof.

“ERISA Affiliate” means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) which together with the Borrower would be treated as a
single employer under Section 4001 of ERISA.

“Eurocurrency Reserve Percentage” means, with respect to each Interest Period, a percentage (expressed as a decimal) equal to the
percentage in effect two Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Period, as prescribed by the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (or any successor), for determining reserve requirements applicable to any “Eurocurrency liabilities” pursuant to
Regulation D or any other applicable regulation of the Board of Governors which prescribes reserve requirements applicable to
“Eurocurrency liabilities” as presently defined in Regulation D.

“Event of Default” means any of the events specified in Section 9.01, provided that any requirement for the giving of notice, the lapse
of time, or both, or any other condition, has been satisfied.

“Fixed Charges Coverage Ratio” means net income less dividend expense (excluding the special one-time dividend of $2.00 per share
paid during FYE 2003) plus interest expense plus depreciation expense plus lease expense plus rent expense all divided by the aggregate of
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt plus interest expense plus rent expense plus lease expense. Calculation of Fixed Charges Coverage
shall be based upon a rolling four quarters basis for all items except Current Maturities of Long Term Debt which is already annualized.

“Funded Debt” means the sum of all debt for borrowed money (including, without limitation, capital lease obligations, subordinated
debt, and unreimbursed drawings under letters of credit) or evidenced by a note, bond, debenture or similar instrument of that person, and
shall, in addition, include contingent reimbursement obligations for outstanding letters of credit (to the extent not resulting in double-
counting).

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States consistently applied.

“General Intangibles” means any personal property, including things in action, other than Accounts, Chattel Paper, Commercial Tort
Claims, Deposit Accounts, Documents, Goods, Instruments, Investment Property, Letter-of-Credit Rights, Letters of Credit, Money and oil,
gas, or other minerals before extraction. The term includes, without limitation, payment intangibles and software, books, correspondence,
credit files, records, computer programs, computer tapes, cards and other papers and documents in the possession or control of Borrower,
claims (including without limitation all claims for




income tax and other refunds), choses in action , contract rights, judgments, patents, patent licenses, trademarks, trademark licenses,
licensing agreements, rights in intellectual property, goodwill (including all goodwill of the Borrower’ business symbolized by and
associated with any and all trademarks, trademark licenses, copyrights and/or service marks), royalty payments, contractual rights, rights as
lessee under any lease of real or personal property, literary rights, copyrights, service names, service marks, logos, trade secrets, all
amounts received as an award in or settlement of a suit in damages, deposit accounts interest in joint ventures or general or limited
partnerships, rights in applications for any of the foregoing, and all proceeds (cash and non-cash) of the foregoing.

“Goods” means all things that are movable when a security interest attaches. The term includes (i) fixtures, (ii) standing timber that is to
be cut and removed under a conveyance or contract for sale, (iii) the unborn young of animals, (iv) crops grown, growing, or to be grown,
even if the crops are produced on trees, vines, or bushes, and (v) manufactured homes. The term also includes a computer program
embedded in goods and any supporting information provided in connection with a transaction relating to the program if (i) the program is
associated with the goods in such a manner that it customarily is considered part of the goods or (ii) by becoming the owner of the goods, a
person acquires a right to use the program in connection with the goods. The term does not include a computer program embedded in goods
that consist solely of the medium in which the program is embedded.

“Health Care Insurance Receivable” means an interest in or claim under a policy of insurance which is a right to payment of a
monetary obligation for health care goods or services provided.

“Hedge Agreement” means any ISDA Master Agreement, Confirmation and Schedules between a Borrower and Bank or any Bank
Affiliate executed at closing or at any time prior to or after closing or any other agreement between Borrower and Bank or any Bank
Affiliate heretofore or hereafter entered into, which provides for an interest rate, currency, equity, credit or commodity swap, cap, floor or
collar, spot or foreign exchange transaction, cross-currency rate swap, currency option, any combination thereof, or option with respect to,
any of the foregoing or any similar transactions, for the purpose of hedging Borrower’s exposures to fluctuations in interest rates, exchange
rates, currency, stock, portfolio or loan valuations or commodity prices (including any such or similar agreement or transaction entered into
by Bank or any Bank Affiliate thereof in connection with any other agreement or transaction between Borrower and Bank or any Bank
Affiliate thereof).

“Instrument” means a negotiable instrument or any other writing that evidences a right to the payment of a monetary obligation, is not
itself a security agreement or lease, and is of a type that in ordinary course of business is transferred by delivery with any necessary
indorsement or assignment.

“Interbank Rate” means, with respect to each Interest Period, the rate per annum at which dollar deposits in immediately available
funds are offered to the Bank two Business Days prior to the beginning of such Interest Period by major banks in the London interbank
eurodollar market as at or about 11:00 a.m. London time, for delivery on the first day of such Interest Period, for the number of days
comprised therein and in an amount comparable to the amount of the Loan to which such Interest Period relates.
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“Interbank Rate (Reserve Adjusted)” means, for any Interest Period, a rate per annum (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the nearest
1/100 of 1%) determined pursuant to the following formula:

Interbank Rate = Interbank Rate
(Reserve Adjusted)

1 — Eurocurrency Reserve Percentage
“Interest Period” means (i) for Base Rate Advances, one (1) day; (ii) for LIBOR Advances, the period beginning on (and including)
the date on which the Advance is made and ending on (but excluding) the first day of each month thereafter and each one month period
thereafter; and (iii) for the Term Loan, (a) while the Applicable Rate is the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin, one (1) day; and
(b) while the Applicable Rate is the LIBOR Rate, the period beginning on (and including) the date on which the Loan is made and ending
on (but excluding) the day one month thereafter and each one month period thereafter.
“Inventory” means goods, other than farm products, which:
(A)  are leased by a person as lessor;
(B)  are held by a person for sale or lease or to be furnished under a contract of services;
(C)  are furnished by a person under a contract of service; or

(D)  consist of raw materials, work in process, or materials used or consumed in a business.

“Investment Property” means a security, whether certificated or uncertificated, security entitlement, securities account, Commodity
Contract, or Commodity Account.

“Item of Payment” or “Items of Payment” means, singly or collectively as the context may require, each check, draft, cash, money,
instrument, item, and other remittance in payment or on account of payment with respect to any Collateral, and other proceeds or products
of Collateral.

“Letter of Credit Right” means a right to payment or performance under a letter of credit, whether or not the beneficiary has demanded
or is at the time entitled to demand payment or performance. The term does not include the right of a beneficiary to demand payment or
performance under a letter of credit.

“Leverage Ratio” shall mean the sum of all Funded Debt divided by EBIDTA.

“LIBOR Advance” means an Advance under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility bearing interest at the LIBOR Rate.

“LIBOR Rate” means an adjustable rate of interest per annum equal to the Interbank Rate (Reserve Adjusted) for Interest Periods of
one month, plus the Applicable Margin, fixed for one month periods and adjusted on the first day of each calendar month.
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"Lien” means any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, security interest, hypothecation, assignment, deposit arrangement, encumbrance, lien
(statutory or other), or preference, priority, or other security agreement or preferential arrangement, charge, or encumbrance of any kind or
nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, any conditional sale or other title retention agreement, any financing lease having
substantially the same economic effect as any of the foregoing, and the filing of any financing statement under the Uniform Commercial
Code or comparable law of any jurisdiction to evidence any of the foregoing).

“Loan” or “Loans” means, singly or collectively as the context may require, the Term Loan and the Advances made under the
Revolving Line of Credit Facility.

“Loan Documents” means this Agreement, the Notes, the Mortgage, any financing statements relating to the Collateral and all other
documents executed by the parties in connection with the transactions contemplated thereby.

“Master List” is defined in Section 3.01(4).

“Maximum Amount” means the maximum principal amount of Advances outstanding from time to time under the Revolving Line of
Credit Facility which shall not exceed the lesser of (i) TWELVE MILLION DOLLARS ($12,000,000.00), or (ii) the Borrowing Base.

“Mortgage” means the Mortgage, Security Agreement and Assignment of Rents and Leases of even date with this Agreement pursuant
to which the Real Property Collateral is pledged and mortgaged to secure the Term Loan.

“Multiemployer Plan” means a multiemployer plan as defined in Sections 3(37) or 4001(a)(3) of ERISA or Section 414 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, in which employees of Borrower or an ERISA Affiliate
participate or to which Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate contribute or are required to contribute.

"Note” or “Notes” means, singly or collectively as the context may require, the Term Loan Note and the Revolving Line of Credit
Facility Note and any renewals or replacements thereof.

“Other Agreements” means all agreements, instruments and documents, including, without limitation, the Notes, any Hedge
Agreement and any other notes, guarantees, mortgages, deeds of trust, chattel mortgages, pledges, powers of attorney, consents,
assignments, contracts, notices, security agreements, leases, financing statements, borrowing base certificates, subordination agreements,
trust account agreements and all other written matter whether heretofore, now or hereafter executed by or on behalf of Borrower with
respect to, or in connection with, this Agreement, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by any
other loan document or Hedge Agreement between the Borrower and the Bank or any Bank Affiliate, together with any and all
amendments, modifications, extensions, substitutions and renewals thereof.
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“Payment Intangible” means a general intangible under which the account debtor’s principal obligation is a monetary obligation.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, business trust, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint
venture, governmental authority, or other entity of whatever nature.

“Plan” means any plan established, maintained, or to which contributions have been made by the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate.
“Real Property Collateral” means the real property described in Exhibit “A” attached to this Agreement.

“Responsible Officer” means, as applicable, the chief executive officer of Borrower or the president of Borrower, or, with respect to
financial matters, the chief financial officer of Borrower.

"Revolving Line of Credit Facility” means the line of credit facility to be made available by the Bank to the Borrower pursuant to
Section 2.02 of this Agreement.

"Revolving Line of Credit Facility Maturity Date” means July 23, 2006.

“Revolving Note” means the promissory note of the Borrower of even date with this Agreement evidencing Borrower’s obligation to
repay Advances under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility.

“Stock Collateral” means all of the authorized and issued capital stock of Sun Hydraulik GmbH, a German corporation and of Sun
Hydraulics Korea Corporation, a Korean corporation.

“Stock Repurchase Agreement” means that certain Stock Repurchase Agreement dated as of June 22, 2002 between the Koski Family
Limited Partnership and Borrower.

“Subsidiary” means, as to any Person, a corporation of which shares of stock having ordinary voting power (other than stock having
such power only by reason of the happening of a contingency) to elect a majority of the board of directors or other managers of such
corporation are at the time owned, or the management of which is otherwise controlled, directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, or both, by such Person.

“Tangible Net Worth” means total assets minus Total Liabilities. For purposes of this computation, the aggregate amount owing from
any officers, stockholders or other Affiliates and the aggregate amount of any intangible assets including, without limitation, goodwill,

franchises, licenses, patents, trademarks, trade names, copyrights, service marks, and brand names, shall be subtracted from total assets.
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“Term Loan” means the term loan made by the Bank to the Borrower pursuant to Section 2.01 of this Agreement.

“Term Note” means the promissory note of the Borrower of even date herewith evidencing Borrower’s obligation to repay the Term
Loan.

“Term Loan Maturity Date” means July 23, 2008.

“Total Liabilities” means all liabilities including, without limitation, capitalized leases and all reserves for deferred taxes and other
deferred sums appearing on the liabilities side of a balance sheet in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis.

SECTION 1.02. Accounting Terms and Uniform Commercial Code. All accounting terms not specifically defined herein shall be
construed in accordance with GAAP and all financial data submitted pursuant to this Agreement shall be prepared in accordance with such
principles. When used herein, the term “financial statements” shall include the notes and schedules thereto. Terms relating to Collateral, if
not expressly defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Uniform Commercial Code as enacted in the State of Florida
including, without limitation, Florida Statutes Chapter 679 relating to secured transactions, as amended from time to time.

SECTION 1.03. Construction. Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, references to the plural include the
singular, references to the singular include the plural, the term “including” is not limiting, and the term “or” has, except where otherwise
indicated, the inclusive meaning represented by the phrase “and/or”. The words “hereof”, “herein”, “hereby’, “hereunder”, and similar
terms in this Agreement refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement. Section, subsection,
clause, schedule and exhibit references are to this Agreement unless otherwise specified. Any reference in this Agreement or in the Loan
Documents to this Agreement or any of the Loan Documents shall include all alterations, amendments, changes, extensions, modifications,
renewals, replacements, substitutions and supplements thereto and thereof, as applicable. All of the schedules and exhibits attached to this
Agreement shall be deemed incorporated herein by reference. Each references to “Borrower” or “Borrowers” shall be deemed to relate to
each Borrower individually and to all Borrowers collectively it being the intent of the parties that the obligations, representations,
warranties and pledges of each Borrower hereunder shall be joint and several.
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ARTICLE 11
THE LOANS

SECTION 2.01. (a) The Term Loan. The Bank agrees, on the terms hereinafter set forth, to make a loan to Borrower (the “Term
Loan”) in the principal amount of ELEVEN MILLION DOLLARS ($11,000,000.00). There is no revolving feature to the Loan and
Borrower may not re-borrow any sums repaid thereunder.

(b) The Note. The Borrower’s obligation to repay the Term Loan shall be evidenced by a Term Note of Borrower of even date with
this Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

(c) Interest Rate. The principal amount of the Term Note outstanding from time to time shall bear interest at the Applicable Rate based
upon selections made by Borrower in accordance with Section 2.01(e). Interest shall be calculated based on a 360 day year for the actual
number of days elapsed during any Interest Period.

(d) Payments Under the Term Note. Borrower shall repay the Term Loan under the Term Note in equal monthly installments of
principal in the amount of $45,833.33, plus interest commencing with a payment due one month from the date of the Term Note and on the
same day of each month thereafter until the Term Loan Maturity Date on which date all outstanding principal and accrued interest shall be
due and payable. All payments received by the Bank shall be applied first to payment of any costs and expenses to which the Bank may be
entitled under any Loan Document, then to payment of accrued interest and then to payment of principal.

(e) Selection and Conversion of Interest Rate.

(1) Subject to the provisions hereof, the Borrower shall have the right to (i) select an initial Applicable Rate to apply to the Term
Note at Closing, and (ii) thereafter continue the Applicable Rate for the Term Loan as the LIBOR Rate, or (ii) to convert the
Applicable Rate from the LIBOR Rate to the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin, or (iii) to convert back from the Base Rate
plus the Applicable Margin to the LIBOR Rate. In each case conversion shall be effected by submitting to the Bank written
notice (effective upon receipt) (a) in the case of conversion from the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin to the LIBOR Rate,
on or before 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time at least two (2) Business Days prior to the effective date of conversion, and (b) in the case
of conversion from the LIBOR Rate to the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin, on or before 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time on the
last day of a current Interest Period. Such conversion shall take effect at the end of the current Interest Period. If no such notice
of election is received by the Bank from the Borrower within the time prescribed prior to the end of a current Interest Period,
then the Applicable Rate shall be continued as the same type with the same Interest Period. Notwithstanding anything herein to
the contrary, no Interest Period may end later than the
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Term Loan Maturity Date.

(2)  After the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the interest Applicable Rate may not be continued at the
LIBOR Rate or the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin, but shall be deemed automatically to have been converted to the
Default Rate.

(f) Right of Prepayment of Loan. Borrower shall have the right any time and from time to time to prepay the principal outstanding
under the Term Note, in whole or in part, without premium or penalty provided, however, that Borrower shall pay accrued interest to the
date of such prepayment. Prepayments shall be made to Bank in immediately available funds, and any such prepayment shall not affect or
vary the obligation of Borrower to pay any installment when due.

(g) Use of Proceeds of Term Loan. The proceeds of the Term Loan shall be used to fund a special dividend to shareholders of $2.00
per share and to refinance existing debt owed to Northern Trust Bank.

(h) Collateral for Term Loan. The Term Loan shall be secured by a first mortgage on the Real Property Collateral and by a first
priority security interest in the non-Real Property Collateral.

SECTION 2.02. The Revolving Line of Credit Facility. (a) The Bank agrees, on the terms hereinafter set forth, to make Advances to
Borrower from time to time until the Revolving Line of Credit Facility Maturity Date in an aggregate principal amount outstanding at any
time not to exceed the Maximum Amount. Within the aforesaid limits, and subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Borrower may
borrow, make payments, and reborrow under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility until the Revolving Line of Credit Facility Maturity
Date, after which the Bank’s obligation to make advances to Borrower under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility shall terminate.
Anything to the contrary in this Agreement notwithstanding, the Bank shall not be obligated to make Advances under the Revolving Line of
Credit Facility after the occurrence and during the pendency of an Event of Default or any occurrence which, with the passage of time or
the giving of notice and without cure as may be provided in the applicable Loan Document, would constitute and Event of Default.

(b) The Revolving Note. The Borrower’s obligation to repay Advances under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility shall be evidenced
by a Revolving Note of Borrower of even date with this Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “C”.

(c) Revolving Line of Credit Facility Advances Interest Rate. The principal amount of the Advances outstanding from time to time
under the Revolving Note shall bear interest at the Applicable Rate based upon selections made by Borrower in accordance with
Section 2.02(e). Interest shall be calculated based on a 360 day year for the actual number of days elapsed during any Interest Period.

(d) Requests for Revolving Line of Credit Facility Advances.
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All requests for Advances after the initial Advance made pursuant to Section 2.03 shall be submitted to the Bank on a Business
Day and all Advances shall be made on Business Days.

Requests for Advances shall be made in writing signed by the Borrower (which may be by telefacsimile) and shall specify the
principal amount requested.

The Bank shall, if all of the conditions precedent set forth in this Article IT and in Article III of this Agreement have been met,
make the Advances requested by Borrower pursuant to this Agreement on the same Business Day after receipt of a written
request for such Advance received by the Bank prior to 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time, and on the next Business Day after receipt of a
written request for such Advance received by the Bank at or after 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time. Each written request for an Advance
shall be effected by crediting the amount thereof to a deposit account designated by Borrower maintained with the Bank or with
a Bank Affiliate.

Selection and Conversion of Interest Rate.

Subject to the provisions hereof, the Borrower shall have the right to (i) select the initial Applicable Rate to apply to an
Advance commencing on the date of the Advance, and (ii) to continue any Advance as a LIBOR Advance or as a Base Rate
Advance, or (iii) to convert any Advance from either a LIBOR Advance or a Base Rate Advance to the other. In each case
conversion shall be effected by submitting to the Bank written notice (effective upon receipt) (a) in the case of conversion from
a Base Rate Advance to a LIBOR Advance, on or before 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time at least two (2) Business Days prior to the
effective date of conversion, and (b) in the case of conversion from a LIBOR Advance to a Base Rate Advance, on or before
11:00 a.m. Eastern Time on the last day of a current Interest Period. Such conversion shall take effect at the end of the current
Interest Period. If no such notice of election is received by the Bank from the Borrower within the time prescribed prior to the
end of a current Interest Period, then the Advance shall be continued as the same type of Advance with the same Interest Period.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Interest Period may end later than the Revolving Line of Credit Maturity
Date.

After the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the interest rate may not be continued at the LIBOR
Rate or the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin, but shall be deemed automatically to have been converted to the Default Rate.

(f) Payments Under the Revolving Note. Interest shall be paid to the Bank on the amount of the Advances outstanding from time to
time and shall be payable monthly commencing with a payment due on the first (1st) day of the month following the Closing Date and on
the first (1st) day of each month thereafter (each such date being an “Interest Payment Date”) provided, however, that all outstanding
principal plus accrued interest on each Advance shall be due and payable on the Revolving Line of Credit Facility Maturity Date. All
payments received by the Bank shall be applied first to payment of any costs and expenses to which the Bank may be entitled under any
Loan Document, then to payment of accrued interest and then to payment of principal.
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(g) Right of Prepayment of Advances. Borrower shall have the right any time and from time to time to prepay the Advances
outstanding under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility, in whole or in part, without premium or penalty provided, however, that Borrower
shall pay accrued interest to the date of such prepayment. Prepayments shall be made to Bank in immediately available funds, and any such
prepayment shall not affect or vary the obligation of Borrower to pay any installment when due.

(h) Use of Proceeds of Revolving Line of Credit Facility Advances. The proceeds of the Advances made under the Revolving Line
of Credit Facility after the initial Advance at Closing shall be used to fund a special dividend to shareholders of $2.00 per share and to fund
Borrower’s working capital needs.

(i) Collateral Security for the Revolving Line of Credit Facility Advances. The Advances made under the Revolving Line of Credit
Facility shall be secured by Borrower granting to the Bank a duly perfected first priority security interest in the Collateral other than the
Real Property Collateral.

(j) Facility Fee. Borrower shall pay to the Bank annually, on the anniversary of the Closing Date, a facility fee calculated and due as
shown in the pricing matrix used for determination of Applicable Margin. The facility fee shall be the percentage shown in said pricing
matrix times the stated principal amount of the Revolving Note.

SECTION 2.03. Closing Disbursements. The Bank shall make full disbursement of the proceeds of the Term Loan at Closing first, to
pay all closing costs and disbursements shown on a closing statement relating to the Loans executed by the Bank and the Borrower at
Closing, then the remainder of the principal of the Term Loan shall be disbursed to Borrower at Closing. The Revolving Line of Credit
Facility shall be available for disbursement for Borrower after Closing. Borrower’s execution of such closing statement shall be conclusive
evidence of Borrower’s approval of the disbursements shown on the closing statement and of Borrower’s authorization for the Bank to pay
such disbursements with the proceeds of the Term Loan.

SECTION 2.04. Mandatory Prepayment of Advances. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the aggregate
outstanding principal balance of the Revolving Line of Credit Facility Advances shall not at any time exceed the Maximum Amount. If the
aggregate outstanding principal balance of such Advances at any time exceeds the Maximum Amount as otherwise determined by the
Bank, then the Borrower shall immediately pay to the Bank an amount equal to such excess. Borrower shall not be entitled to borrow or
reborrow under the Revolving Line of Credit Facility so long as the aggregate outstanding principal balance of Advances exceeds the
Maximum Amount nor if the result of any requested Advance would cause the aggregate outstanding principal balance of all Advances to
exceed the Maximum Amount.

SECTION 2.05. Borrowing Base Certificates. Borrower shall submit to the Bank a Borrowing Base Certificate (a “Borrowing Base
Certificate”) on the date of this Agreement and at least monthly thereafter within thirty (30) days of the end of the fiscal month reported .

Each such Borrowing Base
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Certificate shall be signed and certified by the Responsible Officer of the Borrower and shall, as of the last day of the month reported,

(i) list all Eligible Accounts providing the name, address and contact telephone number for each account debtor and providing account
agings for each, (ii) list all Eligible Inventory, and (iii) update the Master List by adding all newly purchased domestic machinery and
Equipment. The Borrowing Base Certificate shall show Borrower’s calculation of the Borrowing Base as of the date of the certificate and
shall certify, based upon calculations provided therein showing the principal amount of all outstanding Advances, that to the best of the
certifying person’s knowledge, the Maximum Amount has not been exceeded and that no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing or, if a Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, a statement as to the nature thereof and the action which is
proposed to be taken with respect thereto.

SECTION 2.06. Non Usury. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Note or of any instrument securing the Note
or any other instrument executed in connection with the Loans evidenced thereby, it is expressly agreed that amounts payable under the
Note or under the other aforesaid instruments for the payment of interest or any other payment in the nature of or which would be
considered as interest or other charge for the use or loan of money shall not exceed the highest rate allowed by law, from time to time, and
in the event the provisions of this Agreement, the Note or of such other instruments referred to above in this paragraph with respect to the
payment of interest or other charge for the use or loan of money shall result in payments of interest exceeding such limitation, then the
excess over such limitation shall not be payable and the amount otherwise agreed to have been paid shall be reduced by the excess so that
such limitation will not be exceeded, and if any payment actually made shall result in such limitation being exceeded, the amount of the
excess shall constitute and be treated as a repayment of principal and shall operate to reduce such principal by the amount of such excess,
or if any such payment is in excess of the principal indebtedness, such excess shall be refunded.

SECTION 2.07. LIBOR Rate Lending Unlawful. If as a result of a regulatory change the Bank shall reasonably determine that it is
unlawful for the Bank to make, continue or maintain any Loans accruing interest at a LIBOR Rate, the obligation of the Bank to make,
continue or maintain any such Loans at a LIBOR Rate shall, upon such determination (and telephonic notice thereof, to be subsequently
confirmed in writing, to the Borrower which notice shall, in the absence of manifest error, create a rebuttable presumption as to the effect of
such regulatory change as specified above), forthwith be suspended until the earliest date the Bank can determine and notify the Borrower
that the circumstances causing such suspension no longer exist, and the LIBOR Rate applicable to all Loans shall automatically convert to
the Base Rate on the last day(s) of the then current respective Interest Period(s) with respect thereto or sooner, if required by such
regulatory change, provided that the Bank shall take any reasonable actions available to it (including designation of its lending offices)
consistent with legal and regulatory restrictions that will avoid the need for such suspension and will not, in the reasonable judgment of the
Bank, be otherwise materially disadvantageous to the Bank.

SECTION 2.08. Deposits Unavailable. If the Bank shall have reasonably determined that quotations of interest rates for the relevant
deposits referred to in the definition of “Interbank Rate” are not being provided in the relevant amounts or for the relevant maturities for
purposes of determining rates of interest for LIBOR Rate determinations as provided herein or that, by reason of circumstances affecting
the London interbank eurodollar market, adequate means do not exist for ascertaining the LIBOR Rate
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for any Loan to which such rate is the Applicable Rate, then, upon telephonic notice from the Bank to the Borrower to be subsequently
confirmed in writing (such notice, in the absence of manifest error, to create a rebuttable presumption as to the effect specified above), the
obligations of the Bank to make or continue any Loan at a LIBOR Rate shall forthwith be suspended until the earliest date that the Bank
can reasonably determine and notify the Borrower that the circumstances causing such suspension no longer exist, provided that the Bank
shall take any reasonable actions available to it to obtain the necessary quotations of interest rates in the London interbank eurodollar
market (or another eurodollar market acceptable to the Bank and to the Borrower).

SECTION 2.09. Treatment of Affected Loans. If the obligation of the Bank to make, continue or maintain any Loan at a LIBOR Rate
shall be suspended pursuant to Section 2.07 or 2.08 above, the Applicable Rate shall be automatically converted to the Base Rate on the
last day(s) of the then current Interest Period(s) for such Loan (or, in the case of a suspension pursuant to Section 2.07, sooner, if required
by the regulatory change that gave rise to such suspension) and, unless and until the Bank gives notice as provided below that the
circumstances specified in Section 2.07 or 2.08 (as the case may be) that gave rise to such suspension no longer exist all Loans that would
otherwise be made or continued at a LIBOR Rate by the Bank shall be made or continued instead at the Base Rate.

If the Bank gives notice to the Borrower that the circumstances specified in Section 2.07 or 2.08 that gave rise to such suspension no
longer exist (which the Bank agrees to do promptly upon such circumstances ceasing to exist) Advances converted to accrue interest at the
Base Rate shall be re-converted, on the first day(s) of the next succeeding Interest Period(s) for such outstanding Advances, to the LIBOR
Rate based upon an Interest Period elected by the Borrower pursuant to written notice received by the Bank at least three (3) Business Days
prior to the end of the current Interest Period and, if none is so elected by Borrower, for an Interest Period of thirty (30) days.

SECTION 2.10. LIBOR Related Losses and Expenses. In the event that the Bank shall incur any loss or expense (including any loss
or expense incurred by reason of the liquidation or reemployment of deposits or other funds acquired by the Bank to make, continue or
maintain any portion of the principal amount of any Loan at a LIBOR Rate) as a result of any repayment or prepayment of the principal
amount of any Loan on a date other than the scheduled last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto then, upon written notice from the
Bank to the Borrower the Borrower shall, within five days of its receipt thereof, pay directly to the Bank such amount as will (in the
reasonable determination of the Bank) reimburse the Bank for such loss or expense. Such written notice shall, in the absence of manifest
error, create a rebuttable presumption of the amount of such losses or expenses.

SECTION 2.11. Payments and Computations. All payments on account of the indebtedness evidenced by the Notes shall be made in
lawful money no later than 1:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the date due in immediately available United States funds. All payments shall be first
applied to payment of costs and expenses to which the Bank may be entitled under the Loan Documents, then to accrued interest and the
remainder to principal. All computations of interest shall be made on the basis of a year of 360 days charged for the actual number of days
elapsed. Payments are to be made to the Bank in Birmingham, Alabama, or at any one other place in the continental United States as the
Bank may, from time to time, in
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writing designate. Any payment made after 1:00 p.m. Eastern Time shall be deemed received on the next Business Day and must include
interest up to but not including such next Business Day. If any payment becomes due on a Saturday, Sunday, or any day on which banks in
Tampa, Florida or Birmingham, Alabama are legally closed to business, such payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day,
and, in the case of a principal payment, interest on such principal payment shall be payable for such extension of time and shall be included
with such payment.

SECTION 2.12. Default Rate. Upon and after the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder, all principal amounts due under the
Note shall bear interest, payable on demand, at the Default Rate.

SECTION 2.13. Costs. If any miscellaneous items of cost or expense, or any other expenditures are incurred by Bank in connection
with the Term Loan or the Revolving Line of Credit Facility, or in order to protect, preserve or further secure the Bank’s interests with
respect thereto, or, if any action or proceedings shall be commenced by any person other than the Bank to which action or proceedings the
Bank is made a party or in which it shall become necessary to defend the interests of the Bank or the provisions of this Agreement, all sums
paid or incurred by the Bank for such expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, shall be paid by the Borrower, together with interest
thereon at the Default Rate from the date of demand by the Bank for payment. The sums paid or incurred by the Bank in accordance with
the terms of this paragraph shall be paid by the Borrower to the Bank within ten (10) days of demand and the failure or omission of the
Borrower to do so shall entitle the Bank to add such sums to the principal indebtedness of one of the respective Notes, or, at its option, to
declare the Notes to be in default, thereupon maturing all of the unpaid indebtedness including the sums advanced hereunder.

SECTION 2.14. Creditors’ Inquiries. Borrower hereby grants to the proper officials of Bank the right to make response to any
inquiries of creditors and/or suppliers of the Borrower concerning the status of the Loan. Bank agrees to furnish such information from time
to time to the best of its knowledge, provided, however, that the only duty of Bank in the furnishing of such information shall be not to
affirmatively deceive, as construed by decisions of the courts of the State of Florida, which is equivalent to fraud and willful
misrepresentation.

SECTION 2.15. Additional Remedies of Bank. In addition to other remedies available to the Bank in an Event of Default under this
Agreement, should Borrower default, violate, breach or fail to comply with and perform in any material respect any one or more of the
express covenants, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement, which default, violation, breach or failure remains uncured ten (10) days
after written notice thereof to the Borrower, or default under either of the Notes then the Bank shall have the absolute right, at its option
and election, to (1) cancel this Agreement by written notice to the Borrower; (2) institute appropriate proceedings to specifically enforce
performance hereof; (3) withhold further Advances hereunder; (4) take immediate possession of the Collateral; (5) appoint a receiver, as a
matter of strict right without regard to the solvency of Borrower, for the purpose of preserving the Collateral, preventing waste, and to
protect all rights accruing to Bank by virtue of this Agreement. All expenses incurred in connection with the appointment of said receiver,
or in protecting or preserving the Collateral shall be chargeable against the Borrower and shall be enforced as a lien against the Collateral.
Nothing herein shall be construed to require notice or opportunity to cure in the event that Borrower defaults in any obligation to pay
money under the Note. The said remedies and rights of Bank shall be
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cumulative and not exclusive, the Bank to be privileged and have the absolute right to resort to any one or more, or all of the said remedies,
neither to the limited exclusion of the other, or any other remedy available to the Bank at law or equity, in the event of any such default or
breach of said agreement or provisions by the Borrower. The Bank shall have the absolute right to apply any balance of the Loan funds as a
payment toward the Note, and no other party shall have any interest in any Loan funds so applied and shall not have any right to garnish,
require or compel payment thereof toward discharge or satisfaction of any claim or lien which they or any of them have or may have.

SECTION 2.16. Further Assurances. Borrower agrees upon demand to do any act or execute any additional documents (including,
without limitation, security agreements and/or financing statements on any personalty included or to be included as Collateral) as may be
required by Bank to secure the Notes.

SECTION 2.17. Time is of the Essence. It is specifically agreed that time is of the essence of this Agreement, and that no waiver of
any obligation or requirement hereunder shall at any time thereafter be held to be a waiver of the terms hereunder.

SECTION 2.18. Taxes. All payments of the principal of and interest on the Note shall be made without deduction for any present and
future taxes, levies, imposts, deductions, charges or withholdings (other than any of the foregoing levied on or measured by the net income
of the Bank pursuant to the tax laws of the jurisdictions in which it is incorporated or where such Bank’s lending installations are located or
managed and controlled) which amount shall be paid by Borrower. Borrower will pay the amounts necessary so that the gross amount of
the principal and interest paid is not less than that which would have been required by the Note if such taxes and other items were not
payable. All stamp and documentary taxes shall be paid by Borrower. If, notwithstanding the previous three sentences, the Bank pays any
such taxes, Borrower will reimburse the Bank for the amount paid, including interest and penalties for late payment, if any.

ARTICLE IIT
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

SECTION 3.01. Conditions Precedent to Making Advances. In addition to the conditions precedent set forth in Article II of this
Agreement, the obligation of the Bank to make Advances to Borrower as provided in Article II of this Agreement is subject to the further
condition precedent that the Bank shall have received at Closing or on or before the day of closing each Advance, as applicable, each of the
following in form and substance satisfactory to the Bank and its counsel:

(1) Notes. The Term Note and the Revolving Note duly executed by Borrower;

(2) Evidence of all authorizing action by the Borrower. Copies of all corporate action taken by the Borrower, certified as of the date
of this Agreement, including resolutions of Borrower’s Board of Directors, authorizing the execution, delivery, and performance of the

Loan Documents to which Borrower is a party;
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(3) Incumbency and signature certificate of the Borrower. A certificate (dated as of the date of this Agreement) of Borrower
certifying the names, incumbency and true signatures of Borrower’s officers authorized to sign the Loan Documents to which Borrower is
a party and the other documents to be delivered by the Borrower under this Agreement, and having attached thereto certified copies of
Borrower’s Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws, and all amendments thereto;

4)
(@

(b)

Items Relating to Collateral.

The Bank shall have received from Borrower prior to Closing (i) a list of all domestic machinery and Equipment currently
owned by Borrower providing serial numbers or other identification numbers to the extent available and the net book value or
each item of machinery and Equipment (the “Master List™); (ii) a current UCC lien search in a form and from a source
satisfactory to the Bank relating to the Borrower and showing that no other liens or security interests of equal or greater priority
than the lien or security interest of the Bank exist with respect to the non-real property Collateral except such as will be paid,
satisfied and discharged with the proceeds of the Loan and, in such event, that each such lienor or secured party has prepared
and delivered for filing with the appropriate governmental agency upon payment an appropriate satisfaction of lien; (iii) a
Security Agreement (which may be incorporated in this Agreement), in form and substance acceptable to the Bank, granting the
Bank a security interest in the Collateral; (iv) UCC-1 financing statements, in form and substance acceptable to the Bank which,
upon filing with the appropriate governmental office, will duly perfect a first priority security interest in the non-real property
Collateral in favor of the Bank as secured party;

The Bank shall have received within thirty (30) days after Closing possession all of the authorized and issued stock of Sun
Hydraulics Korea Corporation; and

(5) Items Relating to Real Property Collateral. The Bank shall have received, at or prior to the Closing Date, (a) a mortgage from
Borrower securing the Term Note, in form and substance acceptable to the Bank, duly executed in recordable form by Borrower naming the
Bank as mortgagee, encumbering the Real Property Collateral; (b) a loan title insurance commitment relating to the Real Property
Collateral, naming the Bank as the insured mortgagee, and showing (i) good and marketable fee simple title or a leasehold interest
acceptable to the Bank being vested in Borrower, and (ii) that the Bank’s mortgage will be a first priority lien encumbering the mortgaged
property without qualification or exception other than permitted encumbrances accepted by the Bank in writing; and (c) an environmental
indemnification agreement, in form and substance acceptable to the Bank, relating to the Real Property Collateral, whereupon Borrower
agrees to indemnify the Bank against such environmental hazards and other matters as the Bank may require;

(6) Insurance. The Bank shall have received evidence satisfactory to it that all Collateral subject to theft or casualty loss, if any, is
insured against fire, flood, theft and casualty loss to its full insurable value in substance and with coverage amounts reasonably satisfactory
to the Bank; and that the Bank is named as loss payee and an additional insured as its interest may appear in all such insurance
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policies and certificates;

(7) Opinion of Counsel for Borrower. An opinion of counsel for the Borrower as to such matters and in form and substance
acceptable to the Bank;

(8) Other Documents. The Bank shall have received such other approvals, opinions, or documents as the Bank may reasonably
request;

(9) No Defaults. The Bank shall have received a certificate signed by the Borrower dated the date of such Advance, stating that no
Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, or would result from the passage of time or the giving of notice;

(10) Payment of Fees. Borrower shall have paid to or for the benefit of the Bank all fees properly payable by the Borrower to the
Bank; and

(11) General. All agreements, instruments and proceedings in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall
be satisfactory in form and substance to Bank, and Bank shall have received on the date of this Agreement copies of all documents which it
may have requested in connection with this transaction.

SECTION 3.02. Conditions Precedent for the Bank’s Benefit. The foregoing conditions precedent exist solely for the Bank’s benefit,
and the Bank in its sole discretion shall determine whether they have been satisfied. The Bank shall have the right, in its sole and absolute
discretion, to waive any conditions precedent without notice to or the approval of any other entity or person including, without limitation,
any guarantor, provided, however, that such waiver shall not be enforceable against the Bank without its consent unless the waiver is in
writing signed by the Bank.

ARTICLE 1V
SECURITY AGREEMENT

As security for the payment of the Loan and for the performance of all of Borrower’s Obligations under the Loan Documents, the
Borrower hereby assigns, grants and conveys to the Bank and agrees that the Bank shall have a perfected, continuing security interest in all
of the Collateral. The Borrower further agrees that the Bank shall have in respect of the Collateral all of the rights and remedies of a
secured party under the applicable provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code and under other applicable laws and Loan Documents, as
well as those provided in this Agreement. The Borrower covenants and agrees to execute and deliver such financing statements and other
instruments and filings as are necessary in the opinion of the Bank to perfect such security interest. Notwithstanding the fact that the
proceeds of the Collateral constitute a part of the Collateral, the Borrower may not dispose of the Collateral, or any part thereof, other than
in the ordinary course of business or otherwise as may be permitted by this Agreement. Borrower shall, if requested by the Bank, execute a
separate Security Agreement in favor of the Bank relating to the Collateral which shall be construed in conjunction with and as
supplemental to this section.
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ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES
The Borrower represents and warrants to the Bank that:

SECTION 5.01. Organization, Good Standing, and Due Qualification. Borrower is a corporation duly organized, validly existing,
and having an active status under the laws of Borrower’s state or country of organization; has the power and authority to own its assets and
to transact the business in which it is now engaged or proposed to be engaged; and is duly qualified as a foreign business entity and in good
standing under the laws of each other jurisdiction in which such qualification is required, if any, except where the failure to so qualify
would not have a material adverse effect on Borrower’s business or financial condition.

SECTION 5.02. Power and Authority. The execution, delivery, and performance by the Borrower of the Loan Documents to which
Borrower is a party has been duly authorized by all necessary action of the Borrower’s board of directors and does not and will not
(1) require any consent or approval of the shareholders of the Borrower or of any other entity; (2) contravene any of Borrower’s articles of
incorporation or by-laws; (3) violate any provision of any law, rule, regulation (including, without limitation, Regulation U of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System), order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree, determination, or award presently in effect having
applicability to Borrower; (4) result in a breach of or constitute a default under any indenture or loan or credit agreement or any other
agreement, lease, or instrument to which Borrower is a party or by which it or its properties may be bound or affected; (5) result in or
require the creation or imposition of any Lien upon or with respect to any of the properties now owned or hereafter acquired by Borrower
except as granted to the Bank; or (6) cause Borrower to be in default under any such law, rule, regulation, order, writ, judgment, injunction,
decree, determination, or award or any such indenture, agreement, lease, or instrument.

SECTION 5.03. Legally Enforceable Agreement. This Agreement, and each of the other Loan Documents to which the Borrower is
party, and all of Borrower’s undertakings thereunder, when such Loan Documents have been duly executed and delivered under this
Agreement will be, legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Borrower enforceable against Borrower in accordance with their respective
terms, except to the extent that such enforcement may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, and other similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights generally, and principles of equity. Each Borrower represents and warrants that it is not insolvent or contemplating filing a
voluntary petition for bankruptcy nor are any of them aware of any possibility or threat of being subject to any petition for involuntary
bankruptcy.

SECTION 5.04. Financial Statements. All financial statements of the Borrower which have been furnished to the Bank are complete
and correct and fairly present in all material respects the financial condition of the Borrower and the results of the operations of the
Borrower for the periods covered by such statements, all in accordance with GAAP consistently applied and there has been no material
adverse change in the condition (financial or otherwise), business, or operations of the Borrower. There are no
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liabilities of the Borrower fixed or contingent (except obligations of the Borrower under the Stock Repurchase Agreement or with respect
to the funding of the dividend referred to in Section 2.02(h)), which are material but are not reflected in the financial statements, other than
liabilities arising in the ordinary course of business. No information, exhibit, or report furnished by the Borrower to the Bank in connection
with the negotiation of this Agreement contained any material misstatement of fact or omitted to state a material fact or any fact necessary
to make the statement contained therein not materially misleading.

SECTION 5.05. Labor Disputes and Acts of God. Neither the business nor the properties of any Borrower are now affected by any
fire, explosion, accident, strike, lockout or other labor dispute, drought, storm, hail, earthquake, embargo, act of God or of the public
enemy, or other casualty, nor does any Borrower have any reason to believe that they will be affected in the future, by any strike, lockout or
other labor dispute or embargo (whether or not any of the foregoing are covered by insurance) materially and adversely affecting such
business or properties or the operation of any Borrower.

SECTION 5.06. Other Agreements. Borrower is not a party to any indenture, loan, or credit agreement, or, to any Borrower’s
knowledge, to any lease or other agreement or instrument, or subject to any charter or corporate restriction which could have a material
adverse effect on the business, properties, assets, operations, or conditions, financial or otherwise, of Borrower, or the ability of Borrower
to carry out its obligations under the Loan Documents to which it is a party. Borrower is not in default in any respect in the performance,
observance, or fulfillment of any of the obligations, covenants, or conditions contained in any agreement or instrument material to its
business to which it is a party.

SECTION 5.07. Litigation. There is no pending or, to Borrower’s knowledge, threatened action or proceedings against or affecting
Borrower before any court, governmental agency or arbitrator which may, in any one case or in the aggregate, materially adversely affect
the financial condition, operations, properties, or business of any Borrower or the ability of any Borrower to perform its obligations under
the Loan Documents to which it is a party.

SECTION 5.08. No Defaults on Outstanding Judgments or Orders. Borrower has satisfied all judgments against it and Borrower is
not in default with respect to any judgment, writ, injunction, decree, rule, or regulation of any court, arbitrator, or federal, state, municipal,
or other governmental authority, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, domestic or foreign.

SECTION 5.09. Ownership and Liens. Borrower has title to, or valid leasehold interests in, all of its properties and assets, real and
personal, including the properties and assets pledged as Collateral to the Bank (other than any properties or assets disposed of in the
ordinary course of business), and none of the properties and assets owned by the Borrower is subject to any Lien, except such as may be
permitted by this Agreement.

SECTION 5.10. ERISA. Neither Borrower nor any ERISA Affiliate (if any) is party to or a participant in any Multiemployer Plan that
is subject to ERISA.
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SECTION 5.11. Operation of Business. To the best of Borrower’s knowledge, Borrower possesses all licenses, permits, franchises,
patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade names, or rights thereto, to conduct their business substantially as now conducted and as
presently proposed to be conducted, and Borrower is not in violation of any valid rights of others with respect to any of the foregoing.

SECTION 5.12. Taxes. Borrower has filed all tax returns (federal, state and local) required to be filed and has paid all taxes,
assessments, and governmental charges and levies thereon which are due, including interest and penalties.

ARTICLE VI
AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS
So long as the Note shall remain unpaid or the Bank shall have any Commitment under this Agreement, the Borrower will:

SECTION 6.01. Maintenance of Existence. Preserve and maintain its existence and good standing in the jurisdiction of its
organization, and qualify and remain qualified as a foreign business entity in each jurisdiction in which such qualification is required,
except where the failure to so qualify would not have a material adverse effect on Borrower’s business or financial condition.

SECTION 6.02. Maintenance of Records. Keep adequate records and books of account, in which complete entries will be made in
accordance with GAAP consistently applied, reflecting all financial transactions of the Borrower.

SECTION 6.03. Maintenance of Properties. Maintain, keep, and preserve, all of its properties (tangible and intangible) necessary or
useful in the proper conduct of its business in good working order and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted.

SECTION 6.04. Conduct of Business. Continue to engage in business of the same general type as conducted by it on the date of this
Agreement.

SECTION 6.05. Maintenance of Insurance. Maintain insurance with financially sound and reputable insurance companies or
associations in such amounts and covering such risks as are usually carried by companies engaged in the same or a similar business and
similarly situated, which insurance may provide for reasonable deductibility from coverage thereof, and shall include, without limitation,
(1) fire, theft and casualty insurance insuring property pledged to secure the Loan in an amount of not less than full replacement value and
(ii) public liability insurance including, without limitation automobile and appropriate liability coverage relating to the Collateral in the
amount of not less that $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 annual aggregate, and (iii) business interruption insurance. All
personal property and Improvements pledged as Collateral for the Loan shall be insured against fire, theft and casualty loss to the full
insurable value thereof.
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Borrower shall immediately notify the Bank upon the occurrence of any material business interruption or of any material casualty,
damage or loss to Collateral or seizure of any Collateral for any reason including, without limitation, action of any foreign government.

SECTION 6.06. Compliance with Laws. Comply in all material respects with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and orders, such
compliance to include, without limitation, paying before the same become delinquent all taxes, assessments, and governmental charges
imposed upon it or upon its property unless same are being contested by Borrower in good faith in a manner that precludes the issuance of
any tax deed or foreclosure of any lien or claim for unpaid taxes against the Collateral.

SECTION 6.07. Right of Inspection. Upon reasonable prior notice, at any reasonable time and from time to time, permit the Bank or
any agent or representative thereof to examine and make copies of and abstracts from the records and books of account of, and visit the
properties of, the Borrower, and to discuss the affairs, finances, and accounts of the Borrower with any of its officers and directors and the
Borrower’s independent accountants.

SECTION 6.08. Reporting Requirements. Furnish to the Bank:

(1) (A) Quarterly Financial Statements. As soon as available and in any event within forty five (45) days after the end of each of
the first three fiscal quarters of each fiscal year of the Borrower, internally prepared financial statements including, without limitation,
statements of income of the Borrower and balance sheets for the period commencing at the end of the previous fiscal quarter, if any,
and ending with the end of such quarter, and a statement of change in cash flow of the Borrower for the portion of the fiscal year ended
with the last day of such quarter, all in reasonable detail and stating in comparative form the respective figures for the corresponding
date and period in the previous fiscal year, if any, and all prepared on a consolidated and consolidating basis in accordance with GAAP
consistently applied and certified by the controller, treasurer or chief financial officer of the Borrower (subject to year-end
adjustments).

(B) Annual Audited Financial Statements. As soon as available and in any event within one hundred twenty (120) days after the
end of each fiscal year of the Borrower, audited financial statements prepared by an independent certified public accountant reasonably
acceptable to the Bank including, without limitation, a balance sheet of the Borrower as of the end of such fiscal year and a statement
of income and retained earnings of the Borrower for such fiscal year, and a statement of change in cash flow, all in reasonable detail
and stating in comparative form the respective figures for the corresponding date and period in the prior fiscal year, if any, and all
prepared on a consolidated and consolidating basis in accordance with GAAP consistently applied and certified by the controller,
treasurer or chief financial officer of the Borrower.

(2) Management Letters. Promptly upon receipt thereof, copies of any reports submitted to the Borrower by independent certified
public accountants in connection with examination of the financial statements of the Borrower or any Subsidiary made by such

accountants;
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(3) Compliance Certificate. As soon as available and in any event within forty five (45) days after the end of each of the first three
fiscal quarters of Borrower, and concurrently with delivery to the Bank of the Borrower’s annual, financial statements, a certificate signed
by both the president and the chief financial officer of Borrower, certified as to accuracy and completeness, showing (i) compliance with
the financial covenants set forth in Article VIII of this Agreement with all supporting calculations and data, and (ii) for the purpose of
determining the Applicable Margin, a calculation of the Funded Debt to EBIDTA Ratio, and (iii) certifying that no Default or Event of
Default has occurred and is continuing or, if a Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, a statement as to the nature
thereof and the action which is proposed to be taken with respect thereto;

(4) Notice of Litigation. Promptly after the commencement thereof, notice of all actions, suits, and proceedings before any court or
governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency, or instrumentality, domestic or foreign, affecting the Borrower or any
Subsidiary, which, if determined adversely to the Borrower or such Subsidiary, would have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition, properties, or operations of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole;

(5) Notice of Defaults and Events of Default. Immediately after the occurrence of each Default or Event of Default, a written notice
setting forth the details of such Default or Event of Default and the action which is proposed to be taken by the Borrower with respect
thereto;

(6) Proxy Statements, Etc. Promptly after the sending or filing thereof, copies of all proxy statements, financial statements, and
reports which the Borrower or any corporation of which such Borrower is a Subsidiary sends to its stockholders, and copies of all regular,
periodic, and special reports, and all registration statements which the Borrower or any parent corporation files with the Securities and
Exchange Commission or any governmental authority which may be substituted therefor, or with any national securities exchange;

(7) Notice of Acquisition, Bulk Sale, Merger or Change in Control. Prior to any (i) proposed acquisition of control of or purchase of
all or any substantial part of the assets of any corporation or business entity by the Borrower; (ii) sale of all or any substantial part of the
assets of the Borrower; or (iii) any merger by the Borrower with any other entity whether or not a Borrower is to survive the merger; the
Bank shall be provided with not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice.

(8) Notice of Business Interruption, etc. Borrower shall immediately notify the Bank upon the occurrence of any business
interruption, any casualty or damage or loss of property which could have a material adverse effect on the business of the Borrower for any
reason, including, but not limited to any action of any foreign government.

(9) Notice of Change of Borrower’s Name or Change in Location of Collateral. Borrower shall, prior to the effective date of any
change in Borrower’s name and prior to any change in location of any Collateral (except for Inventory and work in progress moving among
Borrower’s and Borrower’s Subsidiaries’ business locations in the ordinary course of Borrower’s business), notify the Bank in writing of
the impending occurrence of any such event and the effective date thereof.
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(10) General Information. Such other information respecting the condition or operations, financial or otherwise, of the Borrower or
any subsidiary as the Bank may from time to time reasonably request.

SECTION 6.09. Hedge Agreements. Borrower hereby grants to the Bank a right of first refusal to enter into any Hedge Agreements
with Borrower. Borrower shall make first inquiry of the Bank regarding the availability of any such Hedge Agreements and the terms of
such offered by the Bank. In the event that Borrower thereafter negotiates a Hedge Agreement with a third party on terms more favorable
than those offered by the Bank, the Borrower shall thereupon provide the Bank with the written terms of such third party Hedge Agreement
and the Bank shall have a right of first refusal to enter into a Hedge Agreement on the same terms. Violation by the Borrower of the Bank’s
right of first refusal hereunder shall constitute an Event of Default under this Agreement.

SECTION 6.10. Unconditional Obligations. The payment and performance by the Borrower of its obligations under the Loan
Documents shall be absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any defense or any rights of set-off, recoupment or counterclaim Borrower
might otherwise have against the Bank and the Borrower shall pay absolutely net all of its payment obligations under the Loan Documents
free of any deductions and without abatement, diminution or set-off; and until payment in full of all such obligations, the Borrower: (a) will
not suspend or discontinue any payments provided for in the Note; (b) will perform and observe all of its other agreements contained in the
Loan Documents; and (c) will not terminate or attempt to terminate this Agreement for any cause.

ARTICLE VII
NEGATIVE COVENANTS

So long as the Note shall remain unpaid or the Bank shall have any Commitment under this Agreement, the Borrower will not, without
the prior written consent of the Bank:

SECTION 7.01. Liens. Create, incur, assume, or suffer to exist, or permit any Subsidiary to create, incur, assume, or suffer to exist, any
Lien upon or with respect to any of the Collateral now owned or hereafter acquired except for Liens of the Bank or Liens that are
subordinated to those of the Bank with the Bank’s knowledge and consent.

SECTION 7.02. Mergers, Bulk Sale or Acquisition of Assets, Etc. Merge or consolidate with, or sell, assign, lease, or otherwise
dispose of (whether in one transaction or in a series of transactions) all or substantially all of its assets (whether now owned or hereafter
acquired) to any Person, or acquire all or substantially all of the assets or the business of any Person, or permit any Subsidiary to do so,
except that (1) any Subsidiary may merge into or transfer assets to the Borrower and (2) any Subsidiary may merge into or consolidate with
or transfer assets to any other Subsidiary.

SECTION 7.03. Sale and Leaseback. Sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of, or permit any
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subsidiary to sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of, any real or personal property to any Person and thereafter directly or indirectly lease
back the same or similar property, for less than fair market value.

SECTION 7.04. Sale of Assets. Except for (i) the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of Borrower’s business, and (ii) the
sale or other disposition of assets that have reached the end of their useful life for purposes of Borrower’s business and which are to be
replaced by assets of like kind or function, sell, lease, assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any of its now owned or hereafter acquired
assets with an individual value of $50,000 or more or in an aggregate value of more than $350,000 annually for other than a price equal to
90% or more of the original purchase value to be paid to Borrower in currently available funds at or prior to the transfer.

SECTION 7.05. Investments. Make, or permit any Subsidiary to make, any loan or advance to any Person, or purchase or otherwise
acquire, or permit any Subsidiary to purchase or otherwise acquire, any capital stock or investment other than in the ordinary course of
business or other securities of, make any capital contribution to, or otherwise invest in or acquire any interest in any Person, except:

(1) direct obligations of the United States or any agency thereof with maturities of one year or less from the date of acquisition; (2)
commercial paper of a domestic issuer rated at least “A-1” by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or “P-1” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.;
(3) certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less from the date of acquisition issued by any commercial bank having capital and
surplus in excess of Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000.00); (4) stock, obligations, or securities received in settlement of debts (created in
the ordinary course of business) owing to the Borrower or any Subsidiary; (5) loans to or to purchase securities of the Borrower or a
Subsidiary; and (6) to accept promissory notes from employees as payment for the purchase price of stock purchased pursuant to an
employee stock option plan; and (7) Borrower shall be permitted to perform its obligations under the Stock Purchase Agreement.

SECTION 7.06. Transactions With Affiliates. Except as may otherwise be permitted by Section 7.05, make any loans to any Affiliate
nor enter into any transaction, including, without limitation, the purchase, sale, or exchange of property or the rendering of any service,
with any Affiliate including, without limitation, the purchase, sale or exchange of property or the rendering of any service, with any
Affiliate, except in the ordinary course of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of the Borrower’s business and upon fair and
reasonable terms no less favorable to the Borrower than would obtain in a comparable arm’s-length transaction with a Person not an
Affiliate.

SECTION 7.07. Stock of Subsidiary, Etc. Sell or otherwise dispose of any shares of capital stock of any Subsidiary or permit any
Subsidiary to issue any additional shares of its capital stock other than to Borrower or another Subsidiary.

SECTION 7.08. Guaranties and Contingent Liabilities. Enter into any guaranty agreement whereby Borrower guaranties payment or
performance of any indebtedness or obligations of any Person other than a Subsidiary; nor assume any contingent liability of any kind or

character whatsoever other than that of a Subsidiary.
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SECTION 7.09 Debt. Enter into any capitalized leases or incur any indebtedness, whether direct or contingent, other than trade
payables, equipment leases and normal accrued expenses which arise under normal operation of Borrower’s business.

SECTION 7.10. Transfer and Change of Location of Collateral. Transfer or permit the transfer to another location of any of the
Collateral or the books and records related to any of the Collateral.

SECTION 7.11. Change of Borrower’s Name. Change Borrower’s name without giving twenty (20) Business Days prior written
notice to the Bank.

ARTICLE VIII
FINANCIAL COVENANTS
SECTION 8.01. Fixed Charges Coverage Ratio. The Borrower shall maintain on a consolidated basis during the term of this
Agreement a minimum Fixed Charges Coverage Ratio of 2.0 to 1.0. Compliance with this covenant shall be determined quarterly on a

rolling four quarters basis.

SECTION 8.02. Maximum Total Liabilities to Tangible Net Worth. The Borrower shall maintain on a consolidated basis determined
quarterly during the term of this Agreement a ratio of Debt to Tangible Net Worth of not more than 1.5 to 1.0.

SECTION 8.03. Minimum Current Ratio. The Borrower shall maintain on a consolidated basis determined quarterly during the term
of this Agreement a minimum Current Ratio of 1.50 to 1.0.

SECTION 8.04. Maximum Leverage Ratio. The Borrower shall maintain on a consolidated basis during the term of this Agreement a
maximum ratio of Funded Debt to EBIDTA of less than 3.25 to 1.0. Compliance with this covenant shall be determined quarterly on a

rolling four quarters basis.

SECTION 8.05. Banking Deposit Relationship. Borrower shall, during the term of this Agreement, maintain its primary domestic
depository accounts with the Bank.

ARTICLE IX
EVENTS OF DEFAULT
SECTION 9.01. Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute an Event of Default:
(1) The Borrower should fail to pay the principal of or interest on any of the Notes, or any
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fee, as and when due and payable;

(2) Any representation or warranty made or deemed made by the Borrower in this Agreement or which is contained in any guaranty,
certificate, document, opinion, or financial or other statement furnished at any time under or in connection with any Loan Document shall
prove to have been incorrect in any material respect on or as of the date made or deemed made;

(3) Borrower shall fail to perform or observe in any material respect any term, covenant, or agreement or shall default under any
material provision contained in any Loan Document including, without limitation, the financial reporting requirements in Article VI and
the financial covenants in Article VIII of this Agreement which are expressly deemed to be material,

(4) Borrower or any Subsidiary shall (a) fail to pay any indebtedness for borrowed money in excess of $50,000.00 (other than the Note),
or any interest or premium thereon, when due or within any applicable grace period (whether by scheduled maturity, required prepayment,
acceleration, demand, or otherwise), or (b) fail to perform or observe any material term, covenant, or condition on its part to be performed
or observed under any agreement or instrument relating to any such indebtedness, when required to be performed or observed, if the effect
of such failure of payment or to perform or observe is to accelerate, or to permit the acceleration after the giving of notice or passage of
time, or both, of the maturity of such indebtedness; or any such indebtedness shall be declared to be due and payable, or required to be
prepaid (other than by a regularly scheduled required prepayment), prior to the stated maturity thereof;

(5) Borrower or any Subsidiary (a) shall generally not, or shall be unable to, or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as such
debts become due; or (b) shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, petition or apply to any tribunal for the appointment of a
custodian, receiver, or trustee for it or a substantial part of its assets; or (c) shall commence any proceeding under any bankruptcy,
reorganization, arrangements, readjustment of debt, dissolution, or liquidation law or statute of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter
in effect; or (d) shall have any such petition or application filed or any such proceeding commenced against it in which an order for relief is
entered or adjudication or appointment is made and which remains undismissed for a period of sixty (60) days or more; or (e) by any act or
omission shall indicate its consent to, approval of, or acquiescence in any such petition, application, or proceeding, or order for relief, or the
appointment of a custodian, receiver, or trustee for all or any substantial part of its properties; or (f) shall suffer any such custodianship,
receivership, or trusteeship to continue undischarged for a period of sixty (60) days or more;

(6) One or more judgments, decrees, or orders for the payment of money in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) in the
aggregate shall be rendered against Borrower or any Guarantor and such judgments, decrees, or orders shall continue unsatisfied and in

effect for a period of thirty (30) consecutive days without being vacated, discharged, satisfied, or stayed or bonded pending appeal;

(7) Borrower or any Subsidiary shall in any material respect fail to comply with any statute, rule, regulation, ordinance, order, or other
law or judicial decree regarding such Borrower, its premises or assets;
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(8) Borrower defaults under any Other Agreements and such default continues beyond any applicable cure period provided therein;

(9) Any foreclosure, execution or attachment shall be instituted or levied against the Collateral, or any part thereof, and such
foreclosure, execution or attachment shall not be dismissed, set aside, discharged or stayed within thirty (30) days after the same shall have
been levied; or

(10) If Borrower’s existence shall be liquidated, dissolved or terminated, or Borrower shall suspend or terminate a substantial portion of
its business operations.

SECTION 9.02. Action if Bankruptcy. If any Event of Default described in Section 9.01 (5) shall occur, the Commitment (if not
theretofore terminated) shall automatically terminate and the outstanding principal amount of all outstanding Loans and Advances and all
other obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Documents shall automatically be and become immediately due and payable, without
notice or demand or presentment and the Bank shall, subject to limitations imposed by laws relating to bankruptcy, moratorium and
equitable limitations on enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, pursue any and all rights of the Bank under the Loan Documents
including, without limitation, foreclosure as to any and all pledged Collateral.

SECTION 9.03. Action if Other Event of Default. Upon the occurrence of any of the events described in Section 9.01 (2), (3), (4) or
(6) through (10), the Borrower shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from the Bank (which may be given by
telefacsimile) within which to effect a cure. If any Event of Default (other than any Event of Default described in Section 9.01 (5) shall
occur for any reason, whether voluntary or involuntary, and be continuing after any applicable cure period, then, and in any such event, the
Bank may: (1) declare its obligations under this Agreement to be terminated, whereupon the same shall forthwith terminate; (2) declare the
Note, all interest thereon, and all other amounts payable under this Agreement and the Loan Documents to be forthwith due and payable,
whereupon the Note, all such interest, and all such amounts shall become and be forthwith due and payable, without presentment, demand,
protest, or further notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrower; and (3) pursue any and all rights of the
Bank under the Loan Documents including, without limitation, foreclosure as to any and all pledged Collateral.

SECTION 9.04. Specific Rights With Regard to Collateral. In addition to all other rights and remedies provided hereunder or as shall
exist at law or in equity from time to time upon occurrence of an Event of Default, the Bank may (but shall be under no obligation to),
without notice to the Borrower, and the Borrower hereby irrevocable appoints the Bank as its attorney-in-fact, with power of substitution, in
the name of the Bank or in the name of the Borrower or otherwise, for the use and benefit of the Bank, but at the cost and expense of the
Borrower and without notice to Borrower, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default:

(i)  request any lessee under any Lease to make payments directly to the Bank to the extent such payments are not already being
made directly to the Bank, with the Bank taking control of the cash and non-cash proceeds thereof;
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(i)

(iii)
(iv)

™)
(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()

compromise, extend or renew any of the Collateral or deal with the same as Bank may deem advisable subject to government
tax liens in respective states and municipalities;

make exchanges, substitutions or surrenders of all or any part of the Collateral,

copy, transcribe or remove from any place of business of Borrower any of Borrower’s Books, records, ledger sheets,
correspondence, invoices and documents in any way relating to or evidencing any of the Collateral or without cost or expense
to the Bank make such use of any of Borrower’s places of business as may be reasonably necessary to administer, control, and
collect the Collateral,

repair, alter or supply goods if necessary to fulfill in whole or in part the purchase order of any Account debtor;

demand, collect, receipt for and give renewals, extensions, discharges and releases of any of the Collateral;

institute and prosecute legal and equitable proceedings to enforce collection of, or realize upon any of the Collateral;

settle, renew, extend, compromise, compound, exchange or adjust claims in respect of any of the Collateral or any legal
proceedings brought in respect thereof;

endorse or sign the name of the Borrower upon any items of payment, certificates of title, instruments, securities, stock
powers, documents, documents of title, or other writing relating to or part of the Collateral including, without limitation, on
any Proof of Claim in Bankruptcy against an Account debtor;

take any other action necessary or beneficial to realize upon or dispose of the Collateral.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 10.01. Amendments, Etc. No amendment, modification, termination, or waiver of any provision of any Loan Document to
which the Borrower is a party, nor consent to any departure by the Borrower from any Loan Document to which it is a party, shall in any
event be effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the Bank, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the
specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given.

SECTION 10.02. Notices, Etc. All notices and other communications provided for under this Agreement and under the other Loan
Documents to which the Borrower is party shall be in writing (including telefacsimile) and mailed or delivered, if to the Borrower, at 1500
West University Parkway,
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Sarasota, FL 34243, Attention: Chief Financial Officer, Fax No. (941) 362- 1268; and if to the Bank, at its address at 420 North 20th Street,
Birmingham, AL 35203, Attn: Florida Corporate Banking (Tampa), with copy to SouthTrust Bank, 150 2nd Avenue North, Suite 200, St.
Petersburg, FL 33701, Attn: Corporate Banking; or, as to each party, at such other address as shall be designated by such party in a written
notice to the other party complying as to delivery with the terms of this Section 10.02. All such notices and communications shall, when
mailed or delivered, be effective when deposited in the mails or delivered to the courier service, respectively, addressed as aforesaid, except
that notices to the Bank pursuant to the provisions of Article II shall not be effective until received by the Bank. Notices sent by
telefacsimile shall be deemed to be effective upon machine confirmation of receipt.

SECTION 10.03. No Waiver; Remedies. No failure on the part of the Bank to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power, or
remedy under any Loan Documents shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any rights under any Loan
Documents preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. The remedies provided in the Loan Documents
are cumulative and not exclusive of any remedies provided by law.

SECTION 10.04. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Borrower and the
Bank and their respective successors and assigns, except that the Borrower may not assign or transfer any of its rights under any Loan
Document to which the Borrower is party without the prior written consent of the Bank.

SECTION 10.05. Costs, Expenses, and Taxes. The Borrower agrees to pay on demand all costs and expenses in connection with the
preparation, execution, delivery, filing, recording, and administration of any of the Loan Documents, including, without limitation, the
reasonable fees and out-of-pocket expenses of counsel for the Bank, with respect thereto and with respect to advising the Bank as to its
rights and responsibilities under any of the Loan Documents, and all costs and expenses, if any, in connection with the enforcement of any
of the Loan Documents. In addition, the Borrower shall pay any and all stamp and other taxes and fees payable or determined to be payable
in connection with the execution, delivery, filing and recording of any of the Loan Documents and the other documents to be delivered
under any such Loan Documents, and agree to save the Bank harmless from and against any and all liabilities with respect to or resulting
from any delay in paying or omission to pay such taxes and fees.

SECTION 10.06. Right of Setoff. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default the Bank is hereby
authorized at any time and from time to time, without notice to the Borrower (any such notice being expressly waived by the Borrower), to
set off and apply any and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final) at any time held and other indebtedness at
any time owing by the Bank to or for the credit or the account of the Borrower against any and all of the obligations of the Borrower now or
hereafter existing under this Agreement or the Note or any other Loan Document, irrespective of whether or not the Bank shall have made
any demand under this Agreement or the Note or such other Loan Document and although such obligations may be unmatured. The Bank
agrees promptly to notify the Borrower after any such setoff and application, provided that the failure to give such notice shall not affect the
validity of such setoff and application. The rights of the Bank under this Section 10.06 are in addition to other rights and remedies
(including, without limitation, other rights of setoff) which the Bank may have.
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SECTION 10.07. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement and the Note and all Loan Documents shall be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Florida. Any suit brought under or relating to this Agreement, the Note or any Loan
Document shall be brought exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction in Hillsborough County, Florida. The foreign Borrowers
expressly agree to and hereby do (i) submit to personal jurisdiction and venue in the United States District Court in and for the Middle
District of Florida, and (ii) hereby appoint Sun Hydraulics Corporation as their respective agent in the United States of America for the
purpose of receipt of service of process on the foreign Borrowers, in each case of (i) and (ii) for any action arising under or in any way
relating to the Loan Documents notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in any Loan Document including, without
limitation, the Stock Pledge Agreements described in Section 3.01(4). The prevailing party in any action brought under or relating to this
Agreement, the Note or any Loan Document shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees, paralegal’s fees and costs of suit,
including fees and costs on appeal and in bankruptcy proceedings.

SECTION 10.08. Severability of Provisions. Any provision of any Loan Document which is prohibited or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the
remaining provisions of such Loan Document or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

SECTION 10.09. Headings. Article and Section headings in the Loan Documents are included in such Loan Documents for the
convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of the applicable Loan Documents for any other purpose.

SECTION 10.10. Waiver of Jury Trial. As an important inducement to the Bank to enter this Agreement, Borrower and Bank each
waive the right to trial by jury in any action arising under or in any way related to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective officers thereunto duly
authorized, as of the date first above written.

SOUTHTRUST BANK SUN HYDRAULICS CORPORATION,
a Florida corporation

By: /s/ H. Lee Culbreath By:/s/ Allen J. Carlson

Name: H. Lee Culbreath Name: Allen J. Carlson

Title: Senior Vice President Title: President, Chief Executive Officer

SUN HYDRAULIK HOLDINGS LIMITED, SUN HYDRAULICS LIMITED

a company incorporated in England and Wales a company incorporated in England and
Wales

By: /s/ Allen J. Carlson By: /s/ Allen J. Carlson

Name: Allen J. Carlson Name: Allen J. Carlson

Title: Authorized Signatory Title: Authorized Signatory
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
1, Allen J. Carlson, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 28, 2003, of Sun Hydraulics Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 12, 2003
/s/ Allen J. Carlson

Allen J. Carlson
President, Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
1, Richard J. Dobbyn, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 28, 2003, of Sun Hydraulics Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 12, 2003
/s/ Richard J. Dobbyn

Richard J. Dobbyn
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350
1, Allen Carlson, the Chief Executive Officer of Sun Hydraulics Corporation (the “Company”), certify that (i) the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the Company for the quarter ended June 28, 2003 (the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or

15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Allen J. Carlson

Chief Executive Officer
August 12, 2003



EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350
1, Richard J. Dobbyn, the Chief Financial Officer of Sun Hydraulics Corporation (the “Company”), certify that (i) the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the Company for the quarter ended June 28, 2003 (the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)

or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Richard J. Dobbyn

Chief Financial Officer
August 12, 2003
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